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PART |

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statetsevithin the meaning of Section 21E of the SamsiExchange Act of 1934. Such
forward-looking statements include, among othdrssé statements including the words “expects, itgdtes,” “intends,” “believes,” “may,”
“will,” “should,” “continue” and similar languagerdhe negative of such terms or other comparabieit®logy. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking stagats are reasonable, HealthStream’s actual remalydiffer significantly from those
projected in the forward-looking statements. Factbat might cause or contribute to such differeninelude, but are not limited to, those
discussed in the section “Risk Factors” and elsegv/hrethis document. In addition, factors that we @ot currently aware of could harm our
future operating results. You should carefully esvithe risks described in other documents HeaklaBtrfiles from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. You are caedioot to place undue reliance on forward-lookitagesnents, which speak only as of the
date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Health&tneundertakes no obligation to publicly release r@wjsions to the forward-looking
statements or reflect events or circumstances tféedate of this document.

Item 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (“HealthStream” or the “Comparrovides Internet-based learning and researahisok to meet the training,

information, and education needs of the healthicathestry. Our learning products are used by heafthorganizations to meet a broad range of
their training and assessment needs, while ouaresgroducts provide our customers informationualpatients’ experiences, workforce
challenges, physician relations, and community gqgifons of their services. HealthStream’s custorasgshealthcare organizations (HCO) and
pharmaceutical and medical device companies (PNiB)iaclude over 1,400 healthcare organizationsdgmenately acute-care facilities)
throughout the United States and some of the tagicakdevice and pharmaceutical companies.

The Company'’s flagship learning product is the “lde@tream Learning Cent&” (HLC), our proprietary, Internet-based learnifgtform,
which at December 31, 2006 had approximately 13f8Pcontracted hospital-based subscribers. Weetadiducational and training
courseware to our customers through the HLC platf@ur research products were added as a resoltr@fcquisition of Data Management &
Research, Inc. (DMR) in March 2005, which expandedservice offering to include quality and satisian surveys, data analyses of survey
results, and other research-based measuremenfdoalsed on physicians, patients, employees, amdbaes of the community.

Services provided to and on behalf of pharmacelicd medical device companies are focused onedkieldpment and delivery of education
initiatives to reach hospital-based healthcaregwsibnals, including physicians, and industry sapsesentatives. Our products and services
include live and online education and training\dtiés as well as Internet-based medical devidaitrg within hospitals through our
HospitalDirect® platform. Pharmaceutical and medical device congsapiovide commercial support for some of our critig education
activities.

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Compasyincorporated in 1990 and began marketing tteshetbased solutions in March 19¢
Including satellite offices in Denver, Colorado df@nklin, Tennessee, HealthStream had approxigna6f employees as of December 31,
2006. From an initial focus on technology-basething, HealthStream has evolved to provide fullvézr delivery of training, information and
education to healthcare organizations. The Compamypleted its initial public offering (IPO) in Apidf 2000.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On March 12, 2007, the Company acquired all ofitkaed and outstanding common stock of The JaoRsganization, Research Consultants,
Inc. (“TJO”) for approximately $12.6 million, corssing of approximately $11.6 million payable in lead 252,616 shares of HealthStream
common stock. Approximately $5.0 million of the bansideration is being held in escrow and wiltéleased upon the occurrence of future
events. All of the common stock shares are helthiescrow account until eighteen months after Ma&;i2007, and are subject to any claims
for indemnification pursuant to the stock purchagezement. The Company expects direct, incremerpanses associated with the acquis

of TJO will approximate $0.7 million. TJO providesalthcare organizations with quality and satisf@csurveys, data analyses of survey
results, and other research-based measurementTd@ss based in Laurel, Maryland and employs @xiprately 200 full time and part time
employees.
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INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the deputy director of the Nationalaile Statistics Group at the Centers for Medicaue lledicaid Services (CMS), spending in
the healthcare industry reached approximately 82lidn in 2005, or 16.0 percent of the gross detieproduct. Hospital care expenditures
accounted for nearly 31 percent of the $2.0 trilliodustry. Approximately 10.4 million professiosare employed in the healthcare segme
the domestic economy, with more than 5.0 milliorp&yed in hospitals, our target market for the Itegtream Learning Center,
HealthStreamDirect™, and HealthStream’s surveyrasdarch products.

The five million hospital-based healthcare profesals that work in the nation’s approximately 5,@@0te-care hospitals are each required by
federal mandates and accrediting bodies to compleitgéng in a number of areas. This training imga safety training mandated by both the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OStAd the Joint Commission on Accreditation of keadre Organizations (JCAHO), as
well as training on patient information confidelitiarequired under the Health Insurance Portabditd Accountability Act (HIPAA).

In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel shegt&gve also contributed to the need for enhancekferce development as well as additional
competency based training. The American Collegdeslthcare Executives reported in October 2004 %@t of hospital CEQ’s were
experiencing nursing shortages at their facilithescording to U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (elsy 2004) Monthly Labor Review, more
than one million new and replacement nurses wilhdéeded by 2012. For the first time, the U.S. Depant of Labor has identified Registered
Nursing as the top occupation in terms of job glothirough the year 2012. We believe that offermaintng and education for hospi
personnel is increasingly being utilized as a rm&@rand recruitment incentive.

Many healthcare professionals use continuing etutéd keep abreast of the latest developmentsreget licensing, certification, and
credentialing requirements. Continuing educati@uirments include continuing education for nure@sergency medical services personnel,
first responder personnel, radiologic personnel@mgicians. Pharmaceutical and medical device emieg must also provide their medical
industry sales representatives with training maedi&r the healthcare industry and training for rpaducts. They also provide support for
education and training for those audiences thatheie products in healthcare organizations.

A large portion of the nation’s hospitals utilizzssearch and survey tools to gain valuable insigbtpatientsexperiences, to assess workftc
competency and engagement, determine the staplg/sician relations and measure the perceptionstdabe hospitals’ in the communities
they serve. Industry-wide, interest is increasmgeisearch, due, in part, to the CAHP&onsumer Assessment of Health Plan Survey)
Hospital Survey launched by CMS in partnership whitlh Agency for Healthcare Research and QualityR&H. According to the Deficit
Reduction Act of 2005, hospitals must now submiader all required quality measures — which inédadhe CAHP® Hospital Survey — in
order to receive the full market basket increagheda reimbursement payment rates from CMS. Hafptihat fail to submit this survey data,
beginning in July 2007, will incur a reduction ofd percentage points in payment rates in 2008. tghrdooth DMR and TJO, we have been
designated as a certified vendor, and will contitaieffer CAHPS® Hospital Survey services.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to operateer intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésalluctions in government reimbursement
rates and increased focus on cost containmentstensiwith participation of patients in managecdeganograms. In addition, hospitals, as well
as pharmaceutical and medical device companiesincento experience rising operating costs, coupligd increased pressure to measure and
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed ta thege needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvingtaing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabiliies, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM'S SOLUTIONS
Services to healthcare organizations

HealthStream’s solutions help healthcare orgarinatimeet their ongoing training, education, infdiorg and compliance needs. We bring
training and education content together with adstiative and management tools through our Inteoased platforms, the HealthStream
Learning CenteP and a more streamlined version, HealthStream EgfYedhis combination supports healthcare administsan configuring
training to meet the precise needs of differentigeoof employees, modifying training materials, dodumenting that training has been
completed. At December 31, 2006, 1,452,000 heakhgeofessionals had contracted subscriptionsdoservices. Pricing for the HLC is
subscription based, with fees based on the nunftmrscribers, courseware provided and other facWe offer training, implementation, and
account management services to facilitate adotiaur platform. Fees for training are based ortitime and efforts of the personnel involved.

Our platform and our courseware are hosted in galesata center that allows subscribers Internegss to our services, thereby eliminating
the need for onsite local implementations of insthlearning management products. A significant beinof our customers that historically
used our installed learning management products tramsitioned to our Internet-based platform. dliph we no longer sell our installed
learning management products, we continue to maiatéegacy installed product and we provide cartaistomers ongoing maintenance and
support, product updates, and have developed temiynto provide them with additional coursewareessc
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capabilities. Our installed learning managementirsaore contracts historically consisted of an upfia@ense fee, additional courseware sales,
and ongoing maintenance and support.

We began offering our research and survey prodagtsresult of our acquisition of DMR, which ocearion March 28, 2005. On March 12,
2007, we acquired TJO, expanding both our custdrase and product strengths. The addition of theareh businesses supplemented our
existing product and service offerings to includggician, patient, community, and employee satigfacsurveys, data analyses of survey
results, and other research-based measurementTbelse acquisitions expanded our product offeriagaipport our healthcare organization
customers in their efforts to transform insighbiattion as they measure and benchmark key datésgdor their constituencies and then
incorporate the results into training and improvetthrough our learning products. As a result esthacquisitions we maintain offices in
Franklin, Tennessee and Laurel, Maryland.

Along with the Internet-based HLC, we also offealiecare organizations full-service capabilitie€tmvert existing course material, self-
author new materials through our Authoring Centedpct, and electively share these materials witleroHealthStream customers through a
courseware exchange. We also offer Authoring Fraypgraded product which includes an industry legdnage library, owned by A.D.A.NV
Inc., as an additional subscription to this prod&eicing for these products is subscription baséth fees based on the number of subscribers
and level of penetration of services, with a sefgefiee for development licenses.

We are currently developing an updated productulilbtllow us to offer our customers tools to emseompetency and performance.
Competency assessment is a requirement of hosaitdlfealthcare organizations for maintaining altitagon, based on JCAHO requirements
to evaluate, document, and report performance ctenpes. We anticipate that our new product widiyile an effective means of determin
which competencies are associated with each positid evaluating and documenting competency asse$snT his new product is also
intended to facilitate the development of a cust@iming program of courses available through th&€Hhat uniquely responds to the needs
identified for each employee.

Our strategy is to continue to grow our customesebaf approximately 1,452,000 contracted subsaibsing the Internet-based HLC, as well
as expanding penetration of additional tools antet across our customer base. We will continuexpand our offering of research and
information tools that are aligned with healthcquality initiatives and continuous improvement etfo\We continue to transition our installed
learning management product customers to our letdrased HLC platform; however historical transiidave resulted in a smaller installed
product customer base. We believe our sales forderarket conditions offer us the opportunity tatioue to grow our hospital-based
customer base.

Services to pharmaceutical and medical device compies

Our services to pharmaceutical companies and meatéwéce companies are focused on development, gesnant, and distribution of
education activities for three audiences: provioesed healthcare professionals, physicians, ancbth@anies’ own sales representatives. We
develop, manage and distribute live, online andt@ducation and training activities for provideased healthcare professionals and physic
as well as online education and training activif@ssales representatives. Certain of the educatitivities we develop and distribute provide
continuing education credit for learners completingm. Live education and training activities ird#uive single or multi-day workshops,
preceptorships and proctorships, and activitiesgareged in hospitals by clinical representativedin@reducation and training activities include
courseware containing video, animations and sirariatand live web meetings. Print education anditrg activities include study guides. All
of these activities are supported by either phaeutcal or medical device companies.

Pricing for all services is based on the scopd&efdactivity, and is attributed to several categodgservices including: activity design and
development, accreditation, marketing, faculty amekting coordination, maintenance and distributoject management, and replication
fulfillment. Not all categories of services appbyall activities. The most significant exceptionghis pricing approach are distribution and
management fees which are based on the numbetilitida or users reached and fees for certainsmuare for sales representatives, which is
priced on a per user basis. Fees for non-accreditities are paid by pharmaceutical and mediezice companies as ordinary service fees.
Fees for accredited activities are paid in the fofranrestricted educational grants.

Our services for pharmaceutical and medical desticepanies are coordinated by our project manageamehtlinical education personnel.
employ a team of project managers and clinical atioic managers and outsource most other serviddgdoparty individuals and companies.
The most significant exceptions to our outsour@pgroach are the distribution and management ofities, particularly online activities that
take advantage of our learning management platéordicustomer network. Project managers contralsgécts of the development of activi
and manage third-party resources used on theiegjClinical education managers control all agpetthe content of accredited activities.

Our strategy includes expanding our revenues hixdudeveloping customer relationships and by leyieig our existing base of Internedsec
HLC customers for deployment of pharmaceutical medlical device training and education through Ieodisting products as well as
development of new products. We seek to grow oarmphceutical and medical device business, buffedlis on transitioning many of our
service offerings to Internet-based products addaimg our focus on project-based development sesvi
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

We acquired TJO on March 12, 2007. For additionfdrimation regarding this acquisition, please rédethe Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, as filed by the Company with the Secesitand Exchange Commission on March 13, 2007.

We acquired DMR in March 2005. For additional imf@tion regarding this acquisition, please see Raiéthe Consolidated Financial
Statements and Item 7, “Management’s Discussionfaradlysis of Financial Condition and Results of @tiens” included elsewhere in this
report.

CUSTOMERS

We provide our training, information and educatsmtutions to customers across a broad range dfesnivithin the healthcare industry,
including healthcare organizations (including gowveent entities) and pharmaceutical and medicalcgesompanies. We derived
approximately 11% and 14% of net revenue from HI®&, during 2006 and 2005, respectively. Duringht@2®06 and 2005, no other
customers represented more than 10% of our nehuevd he following is a partial list of customehsitthave purchased or contracted for
products and services from HealthStream.

Healthcare Organizations Pharmaceutical and Medical Device Companies
HCA, Inc. Zimmer Holdings, Inc

Tenet Healthcare Corporatis Smith & Nephew, Inc

Community Health Systems, Ir Baxter Healthcare Corporatic

Lifepoint Hospitals, Inc
Ardent Health Services, LL
Health Management Associates, |

SALES, MARKETING, AND CUSTOMER SUPPORT

We market our products and services primarily tgtoaur direct sales force and our account relatipnsanagers. As of December 31, 2006,
our sales and relationship management personnsisted of approximately 39 employees based ataynocate headquarters in Nashville,
Tennessee and in our satellite offices locatedamldin, Tennessee and Denver, Colorado, as weraste home office sales locations. Our
geographically dispersed field sales organizatsodivided into teams focused on our hospital awgieand our pharmaceutical and medical
device audience. In addition to sales professiomasalso employ strategic account personnel tlzatage our largest customer relationships as
well as account relationship managers who worlketgetbp and expand relationships, including contragewals, with our hospital customers.

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to primmour products and services, including produdlogs, user groups and trade shows,
online promotion and demonstrations, telemarketgmpaigns, public relations, distribution of prodsieecific literature, direct mail and
advertising. Annually, we host a national usergiugr in Nashville known as “The Summit.” We haveimmouse marketing team that is
responsible for these initiatives and for workinighywand supporting, our product managers and $ates. We also have an in-house research
team focused on ensuring that our sales profedsitiaae appropriate market and target information.

We believe our ability to establish and maintaingdgerm customer relationships, adoption of oudpots and services and recurring sales are
dependent on the strength of our customer sereerations, training, and support team. As of Ddmam31, 2006, our customer service,
operations, training, and support team consistexppfoximately 41 employees located in our corgon@adquarters in Nashville as well as
Franklin, Tennessee office. This team providesarust support to end users through a toll-free tedap line as well as electronic mail. Our
representatives are trained to understand ourgaploy, our products and services, and our spesafees, marketing and support issues. This
team also maintains an ongoing dialog with oura@ustr base to ensure a complete understanding tfroas needs. These personnel also
assist with ongoing issues and training associatddour products as well as to ensure anticipad¢egwals and incremental sales are achieved
The remaining personnel on this team are respan&bltraining, implementation and support of HIl&althStream Express, our survey
business, and installed learning management cussome

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our services are designed to be secure, reliabteerpandable. Our software is a combination oppetary and commercially-available
software and operating systems. This combinaticsoéifvare supports acquisition and conversion oteat, hosting and management of that
content, publication of our Web sites, downloadsairseware, registration, tracking of users, aparting of information for both internal a
external use. We designed our services to allown eamponent to be independently scaled by addingmercially-available hardware and a
combination of commercially-available and propnigtsoftware components.

Our network infrastructure, Web sites, and serttegis deliver most of our services are hosted kgl tbarty providers. Our primary data center
and hosting facility is in Chicago, while a secatada center and hosting facility is located in Nal#h (with a separate vendor). Our second
hosting facility has been utilized to support praodand platform testing by customers, but we carito work to configure
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this location as a backup facility. Both providaraintain our equipment in a secure environmentuding multiple redundancies in power
sources and network connections. Our providergilmggenters are connected to the Internet thronghiple, redundant higkpeed fiber opti
circuits. Our survey products are hosted on seeeeted at our Franklin, Tennessee and Laurelylad offices. Company personnel mon
all servers, networks, and systems on a continbasis. Together with our providers, we employ saMewrels of enterprise firewall systems to
protect our databases, customer information, andseware library. Backups of customer data areopmed on a daily basis. Data is secure

a remote location on a weekly basis.

COMPETITION

The healthcare education industry is highly fragraénvaries significantly in delivery methodsd., written materials, live events, satellite
broadcasts, video, CD-ROM products and online petsjuand is composed of a wide variety of entiiesipeting for customers. The sheer
volume of healthcare information available to $gtontinuing education needs, rapid advances idicaé developments, and the time
constraints that healthcare professionals face malicult to quickly and efficiently access tle®ntinuing education content most relevant to
an individual's practice or profession. Historigalhealthcare professionals have received continaducation and training through offline
publications, such as medical journals and CD-RCdvig, by attending conferences and seminars. Iniaddother healthcare workers and
pharmaceutical and medical device manufacturetessand internal regulatory personnel usually Hiutieir education and training needs
through instructor-led programs from external vasdr internal training departments. While thesgrapches satisfy the ongoing education
and training requirements, they are typically goatid inconvenient. In addition, live courses dterolimited in the breadth of offerings and
not provide a method for tracking training compati The related results of these traditional meshbdth from a business and compliance
standpoint, are difficult to track and measure.

In addition to the competing delivery methods dibsdt above, we also have direct competitors. A remolb companies offer competitive
installed and Web based learning management praduithe healthcare industry. We also compete wi@ming management system provic
such as SABA and SumTotal Systems that provide #eevices to multiple industries, including headtte. We also compete with large
medical publishers that have operating units tfffat ¢tearning management systems that focus orthezak, including Thomson Delmar Net
Learning and Reed Elsevier MC Strategies. In tleesubusiness, we see competition from Press Gavesyonal Research Corporation, and
Gallup. Finally, recently we have also seen andase in a teaming approach between consultingemhaology entities to address larger scale
projects.

We believe our solutions, which include both pradwsmnd services that facilitate training for heedite professionals, a wide assortment of
courseware, a mechanism for measuring satisfaoti@ther results, and the ability to provide alt sarvices on a single platform over the
Internet, provide us with a competitive advantalye. believe that the principal competitive factdifeeting the marketing of information,
training and development services to the healthicahestry include:

. features of the HLC product, including reportintanagement functionality, ability to manage aetgrdf events or modalities,
courseware assignment, scalability, and the alidityack utilization and result

. scope and variety of Inter-based learning courseware available, including ragattcontent for OSHA, JCAHO, patient safety,
HIPAA requirements, competency-based content, disasehe ability of our customers to create ansi ltleeir own Web-enabled
courseware

. scope and quality of professional services offerselyding survey execution, implementation, benahking, training and th
expertise and technical knowledge of the custo’ employees

. competitive pricing, which supports a return oneistiment when compared to other alternative delivegthods
. customer service and suppc

. effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts;

. company reputatior

Collectively, we believe these capabilities provigewith the ability to improve the quality of héredare by improving the quality and
accessibility of healthcare training.
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GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
The Internet

The laws and regulations that govern our businkasge rapidly. The United States government angdlrernments of some states and
foreign countries have attempted to regulate ditivon the Internet. The following are some ofélielving areas of law that are relevant to
our business:

. Privacy Law.Current and proposed federal, state and foreigragyi regulations and other laws restricting thdeotion, use,
confidentiality and disclosure of personal inforrnatcould limit our ability to collect informatioar use the information in our
databases or derived from other sources, to generaénues. It may be costly to implement secwrityther measures designed to
comply with any new legislatiot

. Encryption LawsMany copyright owner associations have lobbiedfélgeral government for laws requiring copyrighteatenials
transmitted over the Internet to be digitally emqded in order to track rights and prevent unaugteatiuse of copyrighted materials. If
these laws are adopted, we may incur substantss$ ¢o comply with these requirements or changeviinewe do busines

. Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adogmedoroposed laws governing the content of material
transmitted over the Internet. These include laatating to obscenity, indecency, libel and defaoratWe could be liable if content
delivered by us violates these regulatic

. Information Security Accountability RegulaticAt least six bills are pending in Congress thatldeequire public companies to obtain
certification by an independent third party of twenpany’s computer information security. In additi€alifornia has enacted
legislation requiring disclosure of security breaelnvolving personal information, and legislatitas been proposed in at least fifteen
other states. If this legislation is enacted, wg maur costs to comply with these security requieats. The preliminary nature of st
legislation and the lack of related guidance madtamation of related costs difficult. If the Compais required to make a public
announcement regarding a breach of security, iddoave a negative impact on our busin

. Sales and Use TaXhrough December 31, 2006, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in all stetevhich we
have employees or have a significant level of sat¢iwity. While HealthStream expects that thisrapgh is appropriate, other state
foreign jurisdictions may seek to impose tax cdi@tobligations on companies like us that engageniine commerce. If they do,
these obligations could limit the growth of eledimcommerce in general and limit our ability t@firfrom the sale of our services
over the Internet

Laws and regulations directly applicable to e-comuaeand Internet communications are becoming maegtent. Congress continues
considering laws regarding Internet taxation. Tieanic nature of this regulatory environment inse=sathe uncertainty regarding the
marketplace impact of such regulation. The enactrokany additional laws or regulations may inceeasr cost of conducting business or
otherwise harm our business, financial conditiod eperating results.

Regulation of Education, Training and Other Servics for Healthcare Professionals

Allied Disciplines.Various allied health professionals are requirediitain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be refigracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursypar. These requirements vary by
state and depend on the classification of the eyeglo

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$HZSHA regulations require employers to provide frairto employees to minimize the
risk of injury from various potential workplace lzmds. Employers in the healthcare industry areireduo provide training with respect to
various topics, including blood borne pathogensosxpe control, laboratory safety and tuberculo#fisation control. OSHA regulations requ
employers to keep records of their employees’ cetign of training with respect to these workplaegdrds.

Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare @rigations (JCAHO)JJCAHO mandates that employers in the healthcangsingl provide
certain workplace safety and patient interactiaiing to employees. JCAHO required training magude programs on infection control,
patient bill of rights, radiation safety and inadeeporting. Healthcare organizations are requiogorovide and document training on these
topics to receive JCAHO accreditation. In additid@AHO imposes continuing education requirementplyrsicians that relate to each
physician’s specific staff appointments.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA).HIPAA regulations require certain organizationglinling most healthcare
providers and health plans, to adopt safeguardsdety the use and disclosure of health-relateatinétion. HIPAA regulations also require
organizations that maintain or transmit health infation electronically in connection with certaiartsactions to provide reasonable and
appropriate safeguards to protect the privacygiitieand confidentiality of individually identiflzsle healthcare
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information. These healthcare organizations araired to establish, maintain and provide trainirithwegard to their policies and procedures
for protecting the integrity and confidentiality iodividually identifiable healthcare informatioHealthcare organizations are required to
document training on these topics to support tbainpliance.

Continuing Nursing Education (CNBE3tate nurse practice laws are usually the sourestbiority for establishing the state board of mgs
requirements. The state board of nursing estaldifestate’s CNE requirements for professionasesirCNE credits are provided through
accredited providers that have been approved bjtierican Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC) Consiois on Accreditation and/or the
state board of nursing. CNE requirements vary wifleim state to state. Thirty-one states requigistered nurses to certify that they have
accumulated a minimum number of CNE credits in otdenaintain their licenses. In some states, tN&E @equirement only applies to re-
licensure of advance practice nurses, or additi@NiEs may be required of this category of nursegjuted CNE ranges from 12 to 50 credits
annually, with reporting generally on a bi-annuasis. Board certifications (e.g., CNOR — certificatof perioperative nursing) also require
CNE credits, with certain percentages requirecpicsic categories based on the certification tyfe. are an accredited provider of CNE by
the ANCC.

Other Continuing EducatioWe are also an accredited provider of continuingcatlon and continuing pharmacy education by th&o8iition
of Surgical Technologists, Inc. (AST) and the Aditation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) peadively.

Continuing Medical Education (CMEgtate licensing boards, professional organizatisrdsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingica@ducation hours to maintain their licensesaé&ally, each state’s medical practice
laws authorize the state’s board of medicine tal#isth and track CME requirements. Thirty-six staedical licensing boards currently have
CME requirements. The number of CME hours requingéach state ranges from 12 to 50 hours per ggher sources of CME requirements
are state medical societies and practice spedakyds. The failure to obtain the requisite amauntt type of CME could result in non-renewal
of the physician’s license to practice medicine/anchembership in a medical or practice speciaiety. The American Medical

Associations (AMA), Physician Recognition Award certificat®RA), is widely accepted by multiple entities asgdrof participation in CME
The AMA classifies continuing medical educationities as either category 1, which includes for@ME activities, or category 2, which
includes most informal activities. Sponsors wardeésignate CME activities for AMA PRA category Ichase this has become the benchmark
for quality in formally organized educational adii®s. Most agencies nationwide that require CMEigipation specify AMA PRA category 1
credit. Only institutions and organizations accredito provide CME can designate an activity for ARMRA category 1. The Accreditation
Council for Continuing Medical Education (ACCMES$, iesponsible for awarding accreditation statugdte medical societies, medical schi
and other institutions and organizations that piteMCME activities for a national audience of phigis. Only institutions and organizations
accredited. The ACCME and state medical societiesad accredit or approve individual activitiesat®tmedical societies, operating under the
aegis of the ACCME, accredit institutions and otfigations that provide CME activities primarily fphysicians within the state or bordering
states. We are an accredited provider of CME byAGEME.

Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers an@i8ggCAHPS)The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CM&e partnered
with the Agency for Healthcare Research and QU@ityRQ) to develop a standardized survey instrunagt data collection methodology for
measuring patients’ perspectives on hospital dre.intent of the survey is to produce comparahta dn the patients’ perspective to allow
consumemased comparisons between hospitals, align inantivdrive hospitals to improve their quality afe, and increase the transpare
of hospital reporting. According to the Deficit Redion Act of 2005, hospitals must now submit dataall required quality measures which
includes the CAHP$ Hospital Survey — in order to receive the full metrkasket increase to their reimbursement payna¢es from CMS.
While hospital participation is voluntary, hosp#ahat fail to submit this survey data, beginnimguly 2007, will incur a reduction of

2.0 percentage points in payment rates in 2008udir both DMR and TJO, we have received certifiexddor designation, and will continue
to offer CAHPS® Hospital Survey services.

Office of the Inspector General (OIG) of the Depannent of Health and Human Services (HHS)

The OIG issued Compliance Program Guidance forrRaeeutical Manufacturers in April 2003 and issuedn@liance Program Guidance for
the Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetics, Orttsptand Supply Industry in July 1999 (collectivehe Guidelines). This document includes
guidelines related to continuing educational atisisupported by pharmaceutical and medical desaogpanies. The Guidelines could affect
the type and extent of future support for our aaitig education activities. The trade associatfonshe pharmaceutical and medical device
industries (PhRMA and AdvaMed, respectively) halge @romulgated their own codes of ethics. The ANBS established its own code of
ethics regarding Gifts to Physician from Industnptovide standards of conduct for the medicalgssion. The Company follows the rules
guidelines provided by ACCME, ANCC, and other conihg education accrediting bodies to ensure thatdantinuing education programming
is free from commercial bias and consistent with Guidelines.

During 2006, both the ANCC and ACPE adopted ACCM&nh8ards of Commercial Support. Because of thetamopf the ACCME

Standards, rules governing the individuals that eheliver educational activities (including clinicaducation activities and live events) and the
location of educational activities at live events more restricted. Further, ACCME, ANCC, and ACRE currently collaborating to develop a
Unified Self Study Report. This will allow an orgaation that has been awarded an accreditation
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status or is seeking accreditation status witthadle accrediting bodies the ability to complete ealf study application and process. We
believe this will also streamline the reaccreditatiimeline for accredited organizations. Untiktkunified Report is completed, we will not be
able to analyze the Report’s impact on our acogdditducation activities.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration and the Fedeal Trade Commission

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actionsragulatory policies or those that the FDA or fi&C may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability wvjate existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the f€bGlate the form, content and dissemination leéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-to-consumer prescriptilvug and medical device advertising, preparedbfor, pharmaceutical, biotechnology or
medical device companies. The FTC regulates owectiunter drug advertising and, in some cases,qakdiévice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the F@pfraved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims nqraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thedmotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseuvices is subject to the full array of the FDAI &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementsisspehip links and any educational programs thedt ildependent editorial control that we
may present with our services could be subjeci8 Br FTC regulation. While the FDA and the FTCqaahe principal burden of complian
with advertising and promotional regulations on &deertiser, if the FDA or FTC finds that any remgatl information presented with our
services violates FDA or FTC regulations, they radge regulatory action against us or the advertissponsor of that information. In 1996,
the FDA announced it would develop a guidance dantraxpressing a broad set of policies dealing thighpromotion of pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and medical device products on tieriret. The FDA has yet to issue that guidance miect, and it is not clear when such
document may be released. The FDA guidance documayteflect new regulatory policies that more tiighegulate the format and conten
promotional information on the Internet.

Other Government Regulations

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (th&) 8Rartered the Advisory Committee on Smaller RuBbbmpanies (the Committee) on
March 23, 2005. The charter directed the Committesssess the current regulatory system for smalielic companies, including the impact
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and make recomd@iBons for change. Currently, our compliance \@iéttion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act has been deferred to calendar year 2007. Duprg 2006, the Committee issued its final reporthe SEC, which included a
recommendation to establish a system of scalediesuegulations for smaller public companiese @ommittee also made specific
recommendations with regard to the external aedjtiirement under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-GdeyThe compliance environment in
which we operate continues to evolve. The Compamyicues to monitor the resolution of this issuengure that we appropriately allocate
resources to maintain compliance with all applieaielgulations.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements and procedures
with employees, consultants and other third partiesnse agreements with consultants, vendorsasthmers, and by controlling access tc
software, documentation and other proprietary imition. We own Federal trademark and service negistrations for the marks
“HEALTHSTREAM”, “HOSPITAL DIRECT”, “OR PROTOCOL", ‘QUALITY CHECK”, and “RESULTS! On-demand survey aysis.”

We obtain the courseware that we license to ouoousrs through a combination of license agreemeittspublishers or authors, assignments
and work-for-hire arrangements with third partigsgd development by employees. We require publishetbors and other third parties to
represent and warrant that their content doesmfidbge on or misappropriate any thipasty intellectual property rights, that they halve right

to provide their content and have obtained alldtipiarty consents necessary to do so. Our publishetisors and other third parties also agre
indemnify us against liability we might sustain doghe content they provide.

If a third party asserts a claim that we have imfeid their patents or other intellectual propesty,may be required to redesign our products or
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. In &ddj we license technologies from third partiesif@orporation into our services. Royalty ¢
licensing agreements with these third parties n@ybe available on terms acceptable to us, iflafdditionally, the steps we have taken to
protect our intellectual property rights may notdsequate. Third parties may infringe or misappedprour proprietary rights. Competitors
may also independently develop technologies tretabstantially equivalent or superior to the tedbgies we employ in our services. If we
fail to protect our proprietary rights adequatelyr competitors could offer similar services, poi@ty significantly harming our competitive
position and decreasing our revenues.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the SEC, includingwal reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#&0-Q and other reports from time to
time. The public may read and copy any materials§iwevith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Referenc@Rat 450 Fifth Street, NW,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infdiioraon the operation of the Public Reference Ragrnealling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The Company is an electronic filer and th€ $faintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.t@t contains the reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information figectronically. Our website address is www.he#éldzsn.com. Please note that our website
address is provided as an inactive textual referemty. We make available free of charge througtveebsite, the annual report on Form K-
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report§orm 8-K, and all amendments to those reports a3 ae reasonably practicable after such
material is electronically filed with or furnishéa the SEC. The information provided on our webisiteot part of this report, and is therefore
not incorporated by reference unless such infoilondt otherwise specifically referenced elsewherthis report.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2006, we employed approximéitély persons. Our success will depend in largeypem our ability to attract and retain
gualified employees. We face competition in thigarel from other companies, but we believe that vaentain good relations with our
employees. We are not subject to any collectivgdiaing agreements.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businespeience of each of the executive officers of tlen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve aptbasure of the Board of Directors. The followiaple sets forth certain information regarc
the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position

Robert A. Frist, Jr 39 Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmathef Board of Director
Arthur E. Newmar 58 Executive Vice President, Compliance Offi

Susan A. Brownit 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officgorporate Secretal

J. Edward Pearsc 44 Senior Vice Presider

Kevin P. C' Hara 37 Senior Vice President and General Coul

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, hexwad as our chief executive officer and chairmfatihe board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. Mr. Frist graduated with aH&#or of Science in business with concentratiorfinance, economics and marketing from
Trinity University.

Arthur E. Newman was promoted to executive vicesiglent effective in March 2006. Mr. Newman previguserved as our chief financial
officer and senior vice president since joining @@mpany in January 2000. Mr. Newman also servesiasompliance officer. From

April 1990 to August 1999, Mr. Newman served ascexige vice president overseeing finance, humaowe®s, information systems and
customer service and fulfillment for Lippincott, Mams and Wilkins, formerly Waverly, Inc., a putlly traded medical sciences publisher.
From August 1999 to January 2000, Mr. Newman seagetthe chief technology officer for Wolters Kluveescientific, technical and medical
companies consisting of five separate units. Mmian holds a Bachelor of Science in chemistry ftbenUniversity of Miami and a Masters
of Business Administration from Rutgers University.

Susan A. Brownie was promoted to chief financidicef effective in March 2006 and was promotedenisr vice president in January 2005.
Ms. Brownie previously served as our vice presiddritnance and corporate controller since joinirsgin November 1999. Ms. Brownie also
serves as our corporate secretary. Ms. Brownieesaym the board of directors of Levy’s Inc., altiog retailer. She holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration from the College of Willieand Mary and is a certified public accountant.

J. Edward Pearson joined the company in June 2886érgor vice president, responsible for our suaray research business. Effective with
acquisition of TJO on March 12, 2007, Mr. Pearsas wamed president of the newly formed HealthStieesearch" group. From 2002 to
June 2003, Mr. Pearson served as CEO for Medibuintarnetbased healthcare exchange and supply chain efficigpiutions provider. Fro
June 2003 to June 2006, he served as presidemh#fexecutive officer of DigiScript, an Internieased training and communication soluti
provider for the life sciences industry. He earad8iachelor of Science in accounting from Middle fessee State University.

Kevin P. O’'Hara was promoted to senior vice prasiéand general counsel in February 2007. Mr. O’Heaia promoted to vice president in
2005, and has served in various roles since joingéim January 2002. Mr. O’Hara served as viceigeas of operations and development at
smallbusiness.com from 2000 to 2001. He practiseginaattorney with Bass, Berry, & Sims LLC in Na#ey Tennessee from 1996 to 2000,
with a specialty in technology, electronic commerugd healthcare. He earned a Bachelor of Artsegegnd a J.D. from Vanderbilt University.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrlielow and elsewhere in this document are tmeipal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weytn@come subject to additional risks that are motemtly known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be maligreedversely affected by any of the following ris&nd by any unknown risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to afthe following risks or any unknown risks.

Risks related to our business model.

We may be unable to effectively implement our grbwtrategy which could have an adverse effect om business and competitive position
in the industry.

Our business strategy includes increasing our nhahare and presence through sales to new custotmegrsitioning existing customers,
further penetration and additional sales to existinstomers and introductions of new products andces. Some of the risks that we may
encounter in implementing our growth strategy idelu

. expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyingl amtegrating new products or services into oustxg organization
. inability to leverage our operational and finanag$stems sufficient to support our grow
. inability to generate sufficient revenue from neraducts to offset investment costs; ¢
. inability to effectively identify, manage and exjplexisting and emerging market opportuniti
If any of these risks are realized, our businessdcsuffer.
We may be unable to effectively identify, completéntegrate the operations of TJO and future acgitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we are activelyieewng possible acquisitions that complement oragrale our business. We may not be able to
identify, complete or integrate the operationsutfife acquisitions, including the integration of eecent acquisition of TJO. In addition, if we
finance acquisitions by issuing equity securit@s, existing shareholders may be diluted which d@ffect the market price of our stock. As a
result, if we fail to properly evaluate and execatguisitions and investments, our business prospeay be seriously harmed. Some of the
risks that we may encounter in implementing ourngitjon strategy include:

. expenses, delays or difficulties of identifying antkgrating acquired companies into our organiwg
. inability to retain personnel associated with astjigins;
. diversion of manageme’'s attention from daily operations; a

. inability to generate sufficient revenues from dsiions to offset acquisition cost

Certain revenue components are subject to signifit8uctuations.

As revenues from our subscription business contiaulecrease, a larger portion of our revenues lvélpredictable; however, quarterly
performance may be more subject to fluctuations@ated with our project based products and sesyishich generally relates to healthcare
organization customers who use our survey and refssarvices as well as our pharmaceutical andeakdevice customers. Our survey and
research services are typically contracted by heate organizations for multi-year terms, but tiegfiency and timing of survey cycles can
vary from quarter to quarter. The pharmaceuticdl medical device business is generally associattdrecurring customer relationships;
however services are generally specific and rétafroduct launches or training events that may ffam year to year. The magnitude of such
contracts may vary widely.

Our sales cycle is lengthy and can vary widely.

The period from our initial contact with a potehGastomer and the first purchase of our solutigiibe customer typically ranges from three to
nine months, and in some cases has extended mubbrfurhe range in the sales cycle can be impdmtddctors including an increasing trend
towards more formal requests for proposals (RJprocess, and more competition within our indysts well as formal budget timelines wt
impact timing of purchases by target customersa Assult of these factors, we have only limitedigttio forecast the timing and type of initial
sales. This, in turn, makes it more difficult tegict quarterly financial performance.
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We may not be able to maintain our competitive piasi against current and potential competitors, esgally those with significantly greater
financial, technical, marketing, and other resourse

Several of our competitors have longer operatistphies and significantly greater financial, tedahi marketing, and other resources than we
do. We encounter direct competition from both laagd small e-learning companies focused on traiamgycontinuing education in the
healthcare industry. We also face competition ftarger survey and research companies. We believaanetain a competitive advantage
against our competitors with the comprehensiveyasfaroducts and services we offer. If our contpesi were to offer a complete e-learning
solution to the healthcare industry, our compegifposition could be adversely affected. These comepanay be able to respond more quickly
than we are to new or changing opportunities, teldgies, standards or customer requirements. Funtihast of our customer agreements are
for shorter terms ranging from one to three yeait no obligation to renew. The short terms ofstnagreements allow customers to more
easily shift to one of our competitors.

Growth in courseware subscription revenues depeindpart, on our obtaining proper distribution right from our content partners.

Most of our agreements with content providers arérfitial terms of two to three years. The conteattners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneaniyg if we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our content
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could resuét nreduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute and decreased revenues. Mamtirohgreements with our content partners are alseemclusive, and our competitors also
offer, or could offer, training and continuing edtion content that is similar to or the same as.ofipublishers and authors, including our
current content partners, offer information to ss@rour competitors on more favorable terms thase offered to us or increase our license
fees, our competitive position and our profit masgand prospects could be harmed. In additionfaihee by our content partners to deliver
high-quality content and to revise their contentegsponse to user demand and evolving healthcaenads and trends could result in user
dissatisfaction and inhibit our ability to attraatd retain subscribers of our courseware offerings.

We may not be able to develop enhancements to mistiag products and services or achieve widespreadeptance of new features or keep
pace with technological developmen

Our revenue growth is expected to be generatedghrsales to new customers as well as increaslag shadditional courseware
subscriptions and other products and servicesistieg customers. Our identification of additiof@htures, content, products and services may
not result in timely development of complementamyducts. In addition, the success of certain nexdpcts and services may be dependent on
continued growth in our base of Internet-basedarnsts or adoption of new methodology by new custsirigecause healthcare training
continues to change and evolve, we may be unaldedorately predict and develop features, conteditceher products to address the needs of
the healthcare industry. If new products, featuoegontent are not accepted by new or existingoonsrs, we may not be able to recover the
cost of this development and our business will érerfed. Continued growth of our Internet-based eustgopulation is dependent on our
ability to continue to provide relevant productsl @ervices in a timely manner. The success of osinless will depend on our ability to
continue providing our products and services a$ ageénhancing our courseware, product and seofieengs that address the needs of
healthcare organizations.

Within the healthcare industry, our customer chaniseare focused on two segments: healthcare orgatiezas and pharmaceutical/ medical
device companies. We rely on spending within thege segments and our business may suffer if finealgressures cause our potential or
existing customers to cut back on our services.

There are several economic factors that have hau@act on the nation’s approximately 5,000 acate hospitals. Some of these factors
include labor costs, which as recently as 2002titatesd 40 percent of 2002 hospital revenues, alingrto the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid (CMS), with half of that allocated for ftag nurses. Also, the reduced Medicare paymetreiases that resulted from the Balanced
Budget Act of 1997 and the lower payments that rhospitals accepted from managed care compantée ilast several years have both had
an adverse financial effect on the hospital segniémgse financial pressures, along with severabntaspital defaults and bankruptcies, have
resulted in limited access to capital for some hatp As HealthStream'’s target market within tiealthcare industry, hospitals’ financial
pressures are salient in achieving our businesctbgs.

Financial analysts generally believe that mediealice companies enjoy higher revenues and eargimygth, relative to their medical supply
company counterparts, although they’re considerecemolatile. The medical device industry is highbncentrated; the largest two percent of
the 6,000 U.S. medical device firms account forlydaalf of the industry’s sales, according to @EIS. In addition, relatively short product

life cycles for medical devices make the managerardtmarketing strategies particularly crucialhis segment. These economic factors
contribute to the volatility of this customer chahfor HealthStream.
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The top ten pharmaceutical companies account faedfent of U.S. drug sales, with the top compamging a ten percent market share of the
U.S. pharmaceutical market in 2001, according taSCBuccessful research and development is therkegr dor long-term growth, yet this
may be held constant or reduced during profit chese—like that experienced by some companies gsafeat expires on their blockbuster
drugs. Both branded and generic pharmaceutical aarap fiercely litigate intellectually property aras a result, may experience adverse
financial consequences. Over the past few yeaesnpdceutical companies experienced a significamease in public scrutiny with respect to
product development, testing and introductionseiriain specific treatment areas. Continued regiristor further extending the testing and
product launch cycle could have a negative impaatur sales to and revenues from pharmaceuticapaoias. As one of our two customer
channels, these characteristics of the pharmaegatici medical device segment could have an impattealthStream.

Our product and service offerings include third pgrtechnology, the loss of which could materiallatm our business. Errors in third party
software or our inability to license this softwaie the future could increase our costs and decrease revenues

We use some licensed third party technology commisria our products. Future licenses to this tetdgyomay not be available to us on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all. The &fsw inability to obtain or maintain any of thesehnology licenses could result in delays in
the introduction of new products or could forcgaigliscontinue offering portions of our learningmagement solutions until equivalent
technology, if available, is identified, licensawlantegrated. The operation of our products wdiddmpaired if errors occur in the third party
software that we incorporate, and we may incurtamthl costs to repair or replace the defectivévearfe. It may be difficult for us to correct
any errors in third party software because theaso is not within our control. Accordingly, ounvenue could decrease and our costs could
increase in the event of any errors in this teabgyl Furthermore, we may become subject to legaind related to licensed technology based
on product liability, infringement of intellectuptoperty or other legal theories.

Financial Risks
A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbfn a relatively small number of customel

We provide our Internet-based training and edunairvices and our survey and research servidd€ £ Inc. (HCA) under separate
agreements. During 2006, we derived approximatéds,lor $3.5 million, of our net revenues from HG3ur agreement with HCA for our
Internet-based training and education servicesresawed for a four year term effective October@Q& and includes the option for HCA to
renew for an additional year. Our survey and reteservices agreement with HCA expires in Decer@b@i7. We also derive a significant
portion of our revenues from a relatively small tagnof other customers. A termination of our agreets with HCA or several of our other
significant customers or a failure by HCA or otkgnificant customers to renew their contractsauofable terms, or at all, would have a
material adverse effect on our business.

A significant portion of our business is subject tenewal each year, therefore, renewals have a mgignificant impact on our revenue an
operating results.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, approxim&gefyercent of our net revenues were derived frammernet-based subscription
products. Our Internet-based HLC customers havebfigation to renew their subscriptions for ourguots or services after the expiration of
the initial subscription period, and in fact, sooustomers have elected not to renew their subgmigin addition, our customers may renew at
a lower pricing or activity level. During the yeamded December 31, 2006, we renewed 90% of theahnantract value up for renewal and
96% of the subscribers which were up for renewatdise a significant portion of our customer ca¢raave only renewed one time, we do
not have sufficient historical data to accuratekydict future customer renewal rates. Our customengwal rates may decline or fluctuate as a
result of a number of factors, including their digsfaction with our service. If we are unable@¢oew a substantial portion of the contracts that
are up for renewal or maintain our pricing, ourenrewres could be adversely affected, which would lzanaterial adverse affect on our results
of operations and financial position. Contractsdor survey and research services typically rangma ne to three years in length, and
customers are not obligated to renew their contréttt us after their contract expires. In additiomych of our live event activity is of a
recurring and somewhat predictable nature; howewverdo not have any long term contracts that ot#iglaese customers beyond their current
contract terms. If our customers do not renew tageingements for our services, or if their actilévels decline, our revenue may decline and
our business will suffer.

Our future success also depends in part on outyatalsell additional features or enhanced offgsiof our services to our current customers.
This may require increasingly sophisticated andlgssles efforts that require targeting, contaithyor approval by our customer’s senior
management. If these efforts are not successfubuasiness may suffer.
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The timing of our revenue recognition from salestagdty is dependent upon achievement of certain mgeor performance milestones, and
our inability to accurately predict them will harmur operating results.

Our ability to record revenues is dependent upeerse factors including the transfer of customegesfic information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to impetcustomers on our Internet-based learning phatféccordingly, if customers do not
provide us with the specified information in a tisgnehanner, our ability to recognize revenues wdldelayed, which could adversely impact
our operating results. In addition, completion andeptance by our customers of developed contelnt@irseware must be achieved, survey
responses must be received, and utilization ofseware is required in connection with subscriptigarnet-based learning products and
commercial support arrangements for us to recogeizenues. As we noted above, while we have bessessful in achieving growth in our
subscription based revenues, our project baseduegehave and may continue to be subject to sigmififluctuations.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdiar products and services over the term of the sediption period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacour operating results.

We recognize a large portion of our revenue frostammers monthly over the terms of their subscriptigreements, which are typically one to
three years, although terms can range from lessdha to up to five years. As a result, much ofrthenue we report in each quarter is related
to subscription agreements entered into duringipusvquarters. Consequently, a decline in new mewed subscriptions in any one quarter
will not necessarily be fully reflected in the rene in that quarter and will negatively affect oewenue in future quarters. In addition, we may
be unable to adjust our cost structure to refleesé¢ reduced revenues. Accordingly, the effecigmiificant downturns in sales and market
acceptance of our products and services may nfutilgereflected in our results of operations uffititure periods. Additionally, our subscription
model also makes it difficult for us to rapidly rease our revenue through additional sales in angg, as revenue from new customers must
be recognized over the applicable subscription term

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindgeaives unless we obtain additional financing, ish may not be available to us on
favorable terms or at all

Our current cash reserves, revolving credit facidind results of operations are expected to Hemuft to meet our cash requirements through
at least 2007. However, we may need to raise additifunds in order to:

. develop new, or enhance existing, services or s

. respond to competitive pressur

. finance working capital requiremen

. sustain content and development relationship

. acquire complementary businesses, technology, sbatgroducts

At December 31, 2006, we had approximately $121Bamiin cash, cash equivalents, restricted caslestments in marketable securities and
related interest receivable. We also have up toObt@lion of availability under a revolving credcility, subject to certain covenants. During
March 2007, we acquired TJO for approximately $ikion in cash. We expect to incur up to $5.0lioil of capital expenditures, software
feature enhancements and content purchases d@@Ygt& support our business. We continue to agtir@liew possible business acquisitions
that would complement our products and servicesnVdg not have adequate cash and investments dalailiai under our revolving credit
facility to consummate one or more acquisitions. d&enot assure you that if we need additional firanthat it will be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all. If adequate funds areavailable or are not available on acceptablaseour ability to fund expansion, take
advantage of available opportunities, develop tiaece services or products or otherwise respondrtipetitive pressures would be
significantly limited. If we raise additional fundhy issuing equity or convertible debt securittbg, percentage ownership of our shareholders
may be reduced.

Our relatively short operating history may preveus from forecasting our results of operations acately.

As a result of our relatively short operating higtand lack of sustained success in executing awth strategy, we do not have historical
financial data for a significant number of periag®n which to forecast quarterly revenues and tesfiloperations. We believe that period-to-
period comparisons of our operating results areneoessarily meaningful and should not be relieshugs indicators of future performance. In
addition, our operating results may vary substinti@his variability may be the result of differe@s in levels of sales activity, introductions of
new products and services, and the related revemoagnition for our various products and servitesine or more future quarters, our results
of operations may fall below recent operating teeadthe expectations of securities analysts avnestiors, and the trading price of our comr
stock may decline.
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We have significant goodwill and identifiable intgible assets recorded on our balance sheet that iImagubject to impairment losses that
would reduce our reported assets and earnings.

As of December 31, 2006, our balance sheet inclgdedwill of $10.3 million and identifiable intaride assets of $2.8 million. The
acquisition of TJO in March 2007 will increase ta@snounts ranging between approximately $13.0amilio $15.0 million. Economic, legal,
regulatory, competitive, contractual, and othetdessmay affect the carrying value of goodwill dddntifiable intangible assets in the future
any of these factors impair the value of thesetasaecounting rules require us to reduce thenyogg value and recognize an impairment
charge, which would reduce our reported asset®amings in the period an impairment is recognized.

Our stock price is likely to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is likely toumlatile and could be subject to significant flations in response to factors such as the
following, some of which are beyond our controlagerly variations in our operating results; opieigtesults that vary from the expectations
of securities analysts and investors; changespeaations as to our future financial performamt@nges in market valuations of other online
service companies; future sales of our common s&iokk market price and volume fluctuations; gahpolitical and economic conditions,
such as a recession or war or terrorist attacksterest rate or currency rate fluctuations; areptisk factors described in this Form 10-K.
Moreover, our stock is thinly traded, and we havelatively small public float. These factors malversely affect the market price of our
common stock. In addition, the market prices focks of many Internet related and technology corgsamave historically experienced
significant price fluctuations that in some casggear to bear no relationship to the operatinggoerénce of these companies.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition
We continue to refine our pricing and our producend services and cannot predict whether the ongoatiginges will be accepted.

Over the past few years we have implemented segbasiges and continue to make changes in our grasid our product and service
offerings to increase revenue and to meet the nefeaisr customers. We cannot predict whether owect pricing and products and services,
or any ongoing refinements we make will be acceptedur existing customer base or by prospectiwtaners. If our customers and potential
customers decide not to accept our current oréupricing or product and service offerings, it @bhave a material adverse effect on our
business.

Risks Related to Operations
Difficulties in the release and transition to theemv version of our Interne-based HLC platform could harm our business.

We released a new version of our Internet-based pla€orm during the fourth quarter of 2006 and&Eebruary 28, 2007, we have
transitioned approximately one-half of our HLC stritser base to this platform. Our future succedbdeipend on our ability to successfully
transition all of our customers to the new platfokfe have experienced issues with certain custothatdave transitioned to the new platf
such as defects in the software, data migraticorg€rand customer orientation to certain changeteor features. If we are unable to timely
correct these issues with certain customers that hleady transitioned to the new platform or wpegience similar issues with those
customers that are yet to transition, customers lmeapme dissatified with our services. If this heqpgy we could lose customers or experience
increased expenses as a result of accelerated ismedfforts or provision of product and servaredits in excess of our accrual for service
interruptions.

We may be unable to adequately develop our systpnogesses and support in a manner that will enab&to meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and serviseesl 999 and continue to develop our ability tovite our courseware and learning
management systems on both a subscription andatttimisal basis over the Internet. Our future susedl depend on our ability to effectively
develop the infrastructure, including additionatdware and software, and implement the servicetjding customer support, necessary to
meet the demand for our services. Our inabilityrfiime to time to successfully develop the necgssgstems and implement the necessary
services on a timely basis has resulted in ourocusts experiencing some delays or interruptionthéir service. Such delays or interruptions
may cause customers to become dissatisfied witls@wice and move to competing providers of tradél and online training and education
services. If this happens, our revenues could keradly affected, which would have a material ageeaffect on our financial condition.

Our business operations could be significantly dipted if we lose members of, or fail to integratejr management team.

Our future performance is substantially dependarthe continued services of our management teanoandbility to retain and motivate
them. The loss of the services of any of our offiaa senior managers could harm our businesseasay not be able to find suitable
replacements. We do not have employment agreemathtsiny of our key personnel, other than our chiedcutive officer, and we do not
maintain any “key person” life insurance policies.
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We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficienimber of qualified employees and, as a result,mway not be able to grow as we expec
maintain the quality of our services.

Our future success will depend on our ability toeat, train, retain and motivate other highly Edltechnical, managerial, marketing and
customer support personnel. Competition for thessgnnel is intense, especially for developers, d&digners and sales personnel, and we
may be unable to successfully attract sufficieqthalified personnel. We have experienced difficirityhe past hiring qualified personnel in a
timely manner for these positions. The pool of digal technical personnel, in particular, is lindten Nashville, Tennessee, which is where our
headquarters are located. We will need to maintersize of our staff to support our anticipateavgh, without compromising the quality of
our offerings or customer service. Our inabilitydoate, hire, integrate and retain qualified pers in sufficient numbers may reduce the
quality of our services.

We must continue to upgrade our technology infrastture, both hardware and software, to effectiveheet demand for our services.

We must continue to add hardware and enhance seftwaccommodate the increased use of our platdmuincreased courseware in our
library. In order to make timely decisions aboutdveare and software enhancements, we must be@blcurately forecast the growth in
demand for our services. This growth in demandftorservices is difficult to forecast and the ptiraudience for our services is large. If we
are unable to increase the data storage and pmogesgpacity of our systems at least as fast agriveth in demand, our customers may
encounter delays or disruptions in their servicest¢heduled downtime could harm our business amdcalsgld discourage current and potential
customers and reduce future revenues.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asodftware may fail.

An unexpected event like a telecommunications fajlfire, earthquake, or other catastrophic logsuatnternet service providers’ facilities or
at our on-site data facility could cause the Idssritical data and prevent us from offering ouoghucts and services. Our business interruption
insurance may not adequately compensate us farddbat may occur. In addition, we rely on thirdtiea to securely store our archived data,
house our Web server and network systems and cbngdc the Internet. While our service provideasédnplanned for certain contingencies,
the failure by any of these third parties to previlese services satisfactorily and our inabibtfind suitable replacements would impair our
ability to access archives and operate our systedsoftware.

We may lose users and lose revenues if our secumigasures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protecgre information are ineffective, we may lose as#rour services, which could reduce our
revenues. We rely on security and authenticatiohrtelogy licensed from third parties. With thistieology, we perform real-time credit card
authorization and verification. We cannot preditiether these security measures could be circumidayt@ew technological developments
addition, our software, databases and servers maylberable to computer viruses, physical or ebeit breakins and similar disruptions. V
may need to spend significant resources to praigainst security breaches or to alleviate problemsed by any breaches. We cannot assure
that we can prevent all security breaches.

Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may require us to change thiay we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkasge rapidly. The United States government angdlrernments of states and foreign
countries have attempted to regulate activitietherinternet. Evolving areas of law that are refea our business include privacy law,
proposed encryption laws, content regulation, imi@tion security accountability regulation, and salad use tax laws and regulations. Bec
of this rapidly evolving and uncertain regulatorwgonment, we cannot predict how these laws agdlations might affect our business. In
addition, these uncertainties make it difficuletessure compliance with the laws and regulationegung the Internet. These laws and
regulations could harm us by subjecting us to lighor forcing us to change how we do businesg ‘®isiness — Government Regulation of
the Internet and the Healthcare Industry” for a enmymplete discussion of these laws and regulations

Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiting education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect our busine

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtiaéing and continuing education for healthcanafgssionals and other healthcare workers
resulting from regulations of state and Federahaigs, state licensing boards and professionahizgtions. Any change in these regulations
that reduce the requirements for continuing edanadind training for the healthcare industry cowddn our business. In addition, our business
with pharmaceutical and medical device manufacsugepredicated on our ability to maintain accraitih status with organizations such as
ACCME, ANCC, AST, and ACPE. The failure to maintatatus as an accredited provider could resultdatémental effect on our business.
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New regulations may reduce our business activityhwpharmaceutical and medical device custome

In April 2003, the OIG of the Department of Headifd Human Services issued “OlG Compliance Prograidabce for Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers.” In July 1999, the OIG issued Comptie Program Guidance for the Durable Medical Bgeit, Prosthetics, Orthotics and
Supply Industry. These guidelines collectively itfgrthree areas of risks for pharmaceutical andliced device companies and recommends
certain best practices to be included in a compégsian designed to avoid the risk of federal ihealte program abuse. The guidance
highlighted a number of arrangements that havethential to trigger fraud and abuse violations|uding educational grants. The Company
follows the rules and guidelines provided by theGME, ANCC and other continuing education accreditiodies to ensure that its continuing
education programming is free from commercial laiad consistent with the OIG guidance. The majaitthe Company’s accredited
continuing education programming is funded by etlanal grants from our pharmaceutical and medieaiace customers. There is no
assurance that our pharmaceutical and medical @evistomers will continue to provide educationaings consistent with past practices. To
the extent that our customers curtail or restrgctbeir business practices, it could have a maiadieerse impact on the Company’s revenues,
results of operations, and financial position.

We may be liable to third parties for content thiatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contenbiir online library if the text, graphics, softwaor other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual propeights, our content partners violate their coctwal obligations to others by providing cont
to our library, or the content does not confornatcepted standards of care in the healthcare grofedNe attempt to minimize these types of
liabilities by requiring representations and watiesrelating to our content partneosinership of the rights to distribute as well as dlccurac
of their content. We also take necessary measoneview this content ourselves. Although our agrests with our content partners contain
provisions providing for indemnification by the ¢ent providers in the event of inaccurate conteetcannot assure you that our content
partners will have the financial resources to ntieistobligation. Alleged liability could harm ouusiness by damaging our reputation, requ
us to incur legal costs in defense, exposing @svards of damages and costs and diverting manadgsnagiention away from our business.
See “Business — Intellectual Property and OthepRetary Rights” for a more complete discussionthaf potential effects of this liability on
our business.

Protection of certain proprietary intellectual pregty may be difficult and costly

Despite protection of certain proprietary rightshiad-party could, without authorization, copyaiherwise appropriate our content or other
information from our databases, or other intellatfroperty. Our agreements with employees, coastdtand others who participate in
development activities could be breached, and ré@solur trade secrets becoming known or indepeityldaveloped by competitors. We may
not have adequate remedies for any breach. Iniaddihe laws of some foreign countries do notgxbour proprietary rights to the same
extent as the laws of the United States, and @ffeattellectual property protection may not beitalde in those jurisdictions. We currently
own several trademarks and domain names. The ¢wystem for registering, allocating and managiomdin names has been the subject of
litigation and proposed regulatory reform. Additdiy, legislative proposals have been made by¢lderal government that would afford bre
protection to owners of databases of informatioigchsas stock quotes. This protection of databdseady exists in the European Union. There
has been substantial litigation in the computer@mithe industries regarding intellectual propesgets, particularly patents. Third-parties may
claim infringement by us with respect to currend &nture products, trademarks or other proprietagiyts, and we may counterclaim against
such parties in such actions. Any such claims antarclaims could be time-consuming, result in lgdgtgation, divert management’s
attention, cause product release delays, requite redesign our products or require us to enterrioyalty or licensing agreements, any of
which could have a material adverse effect uporbosiness, financial condition and operating raes@8uch royalty and licensing agreements
may not be available on terms acceptable to @,afl.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual properand we may be liable for infringing the inteliéual property rights of others.

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized aiieinge upon or misappropriate our intellectpdperty proprietary systems, content,
services or other information. Our efforts to pobteur intellectual property through copyright,deanarks and other controls may not be
adequate. In the future, litigation may be necgstaenforce our intellectual property rights ordigtermine the validity and scope of the
patents, intellectual property, or other proprigtaghts of third parties, which could be time comsng and costly. Intellectual property
infringement claims could be made against us, eaiheas the number of our competitors grows. Thedaams, even if not meritorious, could
be expensive and divert our attention from opegatiar company. In addition, if we become liabléhiod parties for infringing their
intellectual property rights, we could be requiteghay a substantial damage award and develop gaimipanon-infringing intellectual
property, to obtain a license or to cease providirggcontent or services that contain the infriggimellectual property. We may be unable to
develop non-infringing intellectual property or alvt a license on commercially reasonable ternes, al.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Terssee. Our lease for approximately 32,000 squatefehbis location expires in April 2010. T
lease provides for a five-year renewal option wétht at rates which are substantially similar toeut rates. Rent at this location is
approximately $23,000 per month.

In connection with the acquisition of TJO in Ma2B07, we are leasing approximately 19,000 squatedieoffice space in Laurel, Maryland.
The lease expires in March 2012 and provides forremewal options for two years each. Rent atlthuation is approximately $29,000 per
month, with annual rental increases of approxinyatelee percent.

We are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffiwleospace in Denver, Colorado for our satellitice. The lease expires in March 2010 and
has monthly rent of approximately $9,000.

We are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffiwieospace in Franklin, Tennessee for our sagetlffice. The lease expires in August 2007,
and contains two one year renewal options. Rethigtocation is approximately $8,200 per monttotlgh February 2007, and approximately
$8,500 per month from March 2007 to August 2007.

Through January 2007, we leased approximately 6s§0@re feet of office space in Dallas, Texas.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Sktwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsioaded, the high and low sales prices per shaoceio€ommon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ National Market under the ticker symbol HST

Common Stock Price

2006 2005
High Low High Low
First Quartel $3.72 $2.3¢ $3.72 $2.6(
Second Quarte 5.0¢ 3.2 4.0C 2.6t
Third Quartel 3.9C 2.5C 3.9¢€ 2.9t
Fourth Quarte 4.1¢ 3.14 2.8¢ 1.91

On March 26, 2007, there were 168 registered hslded approximately 3,106 beneficial holders of@ammon stock. Because many of such
shares are held by brokers and other institutionisamalf of shareholders, we are unable to estithatéotal number of shareholders
represented by these record holders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagagh dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings to financeekpansion of our operations.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

There have been no sales of unregistered secgities December 31, 2005.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
There were no stock repurchases by the Comparmeifotirth quarter of 200!
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statements of operations data fahtke-year period ended December 31, 2006 andahede sheet data as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 are derived from our consolidateghfiial statements that have been audited by Ern&idhg LLP, our independent registe!
public accounting firm, and are included elsewherhis report. You should read the following sééetfinancial data in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the not#sose statements and “Management’s Discussion aadysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” located elsewhere in thi®re

HealthStream acquired DMR on March 28, 2005. DMfe&uIts of operations are included within our cdidsted statement of operations
effective March 29, 2005. As a result of this asgtign, the annual results presented below aremiparable. Revenues may be subject to
fluctuations as discussed further in “Managemebit&cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” located
elsewhere in this annual report. During 2006, wapted SFAS No. 123(R) “Share-Based Payment” whishilted in approximately $682,000
of stock based compensation expense for 2006. 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Igthle Assets,which eliminated th
amortization of goodwill and indefinite lived intgible assets. In accordance with the provisionSFAS No. 142, we recorded a transitional
goodwill impairment charge of $5.0 million, in doealthcare organizations (HCO) business unit,agraulative effect of a change in
accounting principle as of January 1, 2002. Assaltef these accounting changes, the annual segtdsented below are not comparable. The
operating results for any single year are not resudg indicative of the results to be expectethia future.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues, ne $31,78: $27,35¢ $20,057 $18,19¢ $ 15,79(
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and

amortization) 10,86¢ 9,74¢ 7,27 6,26¢ 5,97(
Product developmel 3,50z 2,92¢ 2,531 3,24 4,67¢
Sales, marketing, general and administrative exgx 12,61: 10,41 9,43: 9,431 12,83t
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,88¢ 2,67¢ 2,107 3,04¢ 4,39¢
Office consolidation charg — — — — 164
Impairment of lon-lived asset: — — — — 10E

Total operating costs and expen 29,87 25,76 21,34¢ 21,99 28,14¢

Income (loss) from operatiol 1,90¢ 1,59¢ (1,297 (3,799 (12,359
Other income (expens 61¢ 33¢ 243 387 717
Net income (loss), before provision for income ta&ad

cumulative effect of a change in accounting prife 2,52¢ 1,93¢ (1,04¢) (3,412 (11,64
Provision for income taxe 28 21 — — —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting pritec — — — — (5,000
Net income (loss $ 2,50( $ 1,918 $ (1,049 $ (3,419 $(16,64))

Net income (loss) per she— basic, before
cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle $ 0.12 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0t $ (0.19) $ (0.57)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prifec — — — — (0.29
Net income (loss) per she— basic $ 0.17 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0% $ (0.19) $ (0.89

Net income (loss) per share — diluted, before
cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0t $ (0.19) $ (0.57)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prifec — — — — (0.25)
Net income (loss) per she— diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0¢ $ (0.19) $ (0.89
Weighted average shares of common stock outstal
— basic 21,571 21,05: 20,58¢ 20,38: 20,26
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding
— diluted 22,35¢ 21,94. 20,58¢ 20,38: 20,26!

At December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivalel $10,72¢ $ 5,72¢ $ 2,257 $ 3,22( $ 4,07(
Investments in marketable securit— short and long

term 1,70C 6,17¢ 14,02t 13,95¢ 15,15
Working capital 11,14¢ 9,42¢ 15,37¢ 16,28¢ 14,91:
Total asset 41,00¢ 35,21¢ 28,43¢ 28,39¢ 32,91
Deferred revenu 5,37¢ 4,50: 3,86¢ 3,05¢ 3,34¢

Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current pt 107 21€ 29 1 41



Shareholder equity 29,63¢ 25,80( 21,73( 22,55¢ 25,89¢
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoalteld in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s Consolidatedhiaial Statements and related notes thereto indlaldewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statements ithadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamtsialcresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated ir tioeaard-looking statements as a result of mangofa, including but not limited to, those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere mrtport.

The following discussion provides an overview of bistory together with a summary of our criticataunting policies and estimates. Our
critical accounting policies and estimates incloelenue recognition, product development costsrelatied capitalization, impairment of
goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assatkywance for doubtful accounts, accrual for sevigerruptions, stock based compensation,
income taxes, and nonmonetary exchanges.

OVERVIEW

HealthStream was incorporated in 1990 and begahatiag its Internet-based solutions in March 1988 Company focuses on being a
facilitator of solutions and training tools for &i@s in the healthcare industry. Revenues fromhisthcare organizations business unit
(HCO) are derived from the following categoriesoyision of services through our Internet-based th&iteam Learning Center, courseware
subscriptions, survey and research services, atyasf complimentary online products, and mainteesand support of installed learning
management products. Revenues from the pharmaakatid medical device company business unit (PMBYarived from live event
development, online training and content developireard other educational and training services.

Our learning solutions help healthcare organizatiomprove their required regulatory training, whaleo offering an opportunity to train their
employees in multiple clinical areas. Our resegmaducts provide customers valuable insight int@asoging quality and satisfaction of
physicians, patients, employees, and members afdhmenunity.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006appreximately $31.8 million compared to $27.4 toe yyear ended December 31, 200¢
increase of 16.2%. Net income improved to $2.5iamlfor 2006 compared to $1.9 million for 2005,iacrease of 30.7%, despite the
January 1, 2006 adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), whéshulted in $0.7 million of stock based compengagéigpense in 2006. Diluted earnings
per share of $0.11 for 2006 improved from $0.02005. Revenues from our Internet-based HLC subsichibse grew $2.2 million, and
revenues from survey and research services alsolyy&2.2 million. Revenues from our pharmaceutérad medical device products incree
moderately. We had approximately 1,352,000 fullpliemented subscribers on our Internet-based HL{opha at December 31, 2006,
representing over 1,400 hospitals in the UnitedeSteDuring 2006, we renewed approximately 6008)ikcribers, representing a 96% ren
rate for the subscribers up for renewal, and a 888wal rate based on the annual contract valderupnewal.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we launched & aed enhanced version of our Internet-based HUGghwve refer to as our Next
Generation HLC. We have invested a significant amofi capital and internal resources to developaemloy this new version of our flagship
product. We expect this new version of the HLC wilable us to more efficiently integrate the dedvef new product offerings to healthcare
professionals who subscribe to our learning sahsti®uccessful deployment and acceptance of thigtieC version will be the cornerstone to
our future growth.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our Internet-based ileguproducts and courseware subscriptions to heséhworkers through healthcare
organizations based on a per person subscriptisis,haith fees ranging from less than $1 to appnately $5 per month. These fees are based
on the size of the facilities’ or organizations’ @oyee user population and the service offeringshah they subscribe. Contracts for our
Internet-based learning products generally rang fiess than $5,000 to approximately $400,000 per pased on the number of users,
products and services included in the contracteReg is recognized ratably over the service parfae underlying contract.

Revenues from our survey and research servicedeteemined using the proportional performance nthad are earned over the estimated
survey cycle, which typically ranges from less tloae month to up to four months. The survey cy&lgeinerally initiated based on the receipt
of the first survey response and runs through giomiof related survey reports to the customerogiker revenues are recognized as the relatec
services are performed or products are deliverédg@ustomer.

Revenues from content maintenance services areiasmbwith maintaining and updating customer owo@atent. Fees are based on the time
and efforts involved, and revenue is recognizechugmpletion of performance milestones using tlopprtional performance method.
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We offer training services for clients to facilgahtegration of our Internet-based products. Feesaining are based on the time and efforts of
the personnel involved. Basic online training isg@lly included in the initial contract, howevirgcremental training revenues are generally
recognized upon completion of training services.

Revenues from installed learning management predaret associated with ongoing maintenance anditatlsupport services, typically based
on a percentage of the original contract amountaaadecognized as revenue over the term of thecegperiod, generally one year. We have
and expect to continue to transition customers foomexisting installed learning management proslt@wour Internet-based learning products.
We expect that revenues resulting from these tiiansiustomers will increase when compared to tireial maintenance and technical support
services fees due to sales of additional servindaline courseware.

We recognize revenue from live event developmentices using a proportional performance method dasecompletion of performance
milestones. Revenues from content maintenance evel@bment services are recognized using a pegetacompletion method based on
labor hours, which correspond to the completiopeformance milestones and deliverables. Salesoafygts and services to pharmaceutical
and medical device companies can be subject tosabfactors as a result of drug and product intotidns, meeting and conference dates and
budget cycles for such companies.

Revenues associated with online training are reicedrover the term of the subscription period cgrahe historical usage period, if usage
typically differs from the subscription period. Adther service revenues are recognized as thededatvices are performed or products are
delivered.

We expect to continue to generate revenues by riagkeur Internet-based products and services édtheare workers through healthcare
organizations and pharmaceutical and medical dexdogpanies. We expect that the portion of our reesmelated to services provided via our
Internet-based learning products will increasebisadute dollar amounts. Since revenues from oweguand research services are not Internet-
based, the percentage of total revenues from letdrased subscription products has declined cordgarkistorical periods. Specifically, we
will seek to generate revenues from healthcare grarky marketing to their employers or sponsorirgganizations. The fees we charge for
courseware resulting from this marketing is tydicahid by either the employer or sponsoring orgation.

Product Development Costs

We account for Web site development costs in acsare with EITF Issue No. 00-2 “Accounting for WebePevelopment Costs” and for
capitalized software feature enhancements in aeocelwith SOP 98-1 “Accounting for the Costs of @aiter Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use,” which provide guidameewhen to capitalize versus expense costs inctiorddvelop internal use software or Web
sites. We capitalize costs incurred during the tigraent phase for such projects when such costsaterial. Maintenance and operating ¢
are expensed as incurred.

Product development costs primarily include oueiinél costs to maintain and internally developvgafe feature enhancements and conter
our Internet-based learning and installed learmi@gagement products. Once planning is completedlanelopment begins, we capitalize
payments to third parties associated with the absbftware feature enhancement development oecbmthere the life expectancy is greater
than one year and the anticipated cash flows frech software feature enhancements or content gected to exceed the cost of the related
asset. During both 2006 and 2005, we capitalizgdegimately $400,000 related to development of enhby third parties. Such amounts are
included in the accompanying consolidated balaheets under the caption “prepaid development fard™other assets.” During 2006 and
2005, we capitalized approximately $2.3 million &&00,000, respectively, for development of sofeM@ature enhancements by third parties.
Such amounts are included in the accompanying balaheets under the caption “capitalized softwaeaéufe enhancements.” A significant
portion of these capitalized costs were associattdthe development of our Next Generation HLOfjplan and a hew competency assess!
product. We amortize content and software featnh@ecements over their expected life, which is galyeone to four years. Capitalized
content and software feature enhancements arecsuibja periodic impairment review.

In connection with product development, our sigmfit estimates involve the assessment of the dawelot period for new products, as wel
the expected useful life of costs associated wéth products, software feature enhancements anémo@nce capitalized, software feature
enhancements and content development costs aecstijhe policies and estimates described bedgarding goodwill, intangibles and other
long-lived assets.

Product development costs also include our systeam, which manages our efforts associated witbyrodevelopment and maintenance,
database management, quality assurance and sedtnigyteam is responsible for new internal prodiestelopment, integration of external r
products, and continued enhancements and regugleligduled maintenance (called ServicePacks) tplatform. This team is also responsible
for the migration of customers to our Next GeneratiLC platform. Our product management team, wigalesponsible for our overall
product portfolio as well as prioritization of n@roduct development, is also included in produeettgpment costs. This team was organized
and began administering a more formal product mamagt process during 2006.
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Goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assets

We account for goodwill, intangibles and other ldivgd assets in accordance with Statement of Kiaaccounting Standards

(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Intangible AssetsidaSFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairmentiisposal of Long-Lived AssetsWe
measure for impairment at the reporting unit lax@hg a discounted cash flow model to determineetfitenated fair value of the reporting
units. Our discounted cash flow model containsifigant assumptions and accounting estimates atlisabunt rates, future cash flows and
terminal values that could materially affect ouergting results or financial position if they weéoechange significantly in the future and could
result in an impairment. We perform our goodwilliairment test whenever events or changes in faasaumstances indicate that
impairment may exist and also during the fourthrtpreeach year.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountegibioth a specific and non-specific identificatioethod. Management’s evaluation
includes reviewing past due accounts on a casey lsasis, and determining whether an accountaghbeuleserved, based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding each potentially unctliercaccount. An allowance is also maintaineddfocounts not specifically identified that
may become uncollectible in the future. Uncolldetibccounts are written-off in the period managerbetieves it has exhausted every
opportunity to collect payment from the customeadRlebt expense is recorded when events or ciramces indicate an additional allowance
is necessary based on our specific identificatjgoreach.

Accrual for Service Interruptions

We provide customers with a fully hosted learningnisgement application, and our Internet-basedilg@products are subject to periodic
downtime. Due to the complexity of our hosted aggilons, variability in customer utilization patter changes in technology, and potential
software defects, our hosted applications couléggpce periodic downtime. We maintain an accruattvis intended to provide for custon
concessions in the event customers experienceveo@nces or operation disruption resulting frorwdtime of our applications. Our accrual
for service interruptions totaled approximately $8D0 as of December 31, 2006. Certain of our custe who have transitioned to our new
platform have experienced difficulties in accessingising certain features of our system, and vpeetxto provide these customers with
product and service credits.

Stock Based Compensation

We began recognizing compensation expense, udaig@alue based method, for costs related to shased payments, including stock
options on January 1, 2006. Measurement of suclpengation expense requires significant estimatimhagsumptions, however we believe
that the Black Scholes option pricing model we fosecalculating the fair value of our stock basethpensation plans provides measurement
using a framework that is widely adopted.

We have a stock option plan and an employee stodhpse plan which qualify as stock based compiemsplans. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, we recorded $682,068 of stos&deaompensation expense resulting from the adopfiSFAS No. 123(R). We typically
grant stock options to our management group omaunal basis, or when new members of the managegneap begin their employment. We
grant stock options to members of our board ofafiines in conjunction with our annual shareholdeeetimg, or as new members are added
pro rata basis based on the time elapsed sincanmwral shareholders’ meeting. We expect to contihigepractice for the foreseeable future;
however, we may adjust the size of the annual grsbf December 31, 2006, total future compengatimst related to non-vested awards not
yet recognized was $1,139,874, net of estimatddifares, with a weighted average expense recagnigeriod of 2.7 years. Futu
compensation expense recognition for new optiontgraill vary depending on the timing and size efwawards granted, changes in the
market price or volatility of our common stock, olgas in risk-free interest rates, or if actualddrtfres vary significantly from our estimates.

Accounting for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Aaating for Income Taxes.” The
Company has significant net operating loss carwéods (NOLs) which may be available to reduce fitax expense. These NOLs are subject
to annual limitations under the Internal Revenud&C8ection 382, which could result in the expiratid such NOLs before they are fully
utilized. Until the Company has a period of sustdiand predictable profitability consistent witlalizing some portion of the benefit from the
NOLs, the valuation allowance associated with N@ilsbe maintained. Management assesses the vatuatiowance periodically whenev
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleabehefit associated with such NOLs may be realized

Nonmonetary Exchange of Content Rights and Deferre&ervice Credits

During 2006, we recorded content rights and defieservice credits in connection with a nonmonetaghange with one of our customers. In
order to account for this transaction, we estim#tedair value of the related assets and serviedits, assessed whether the value assigned to
the content was recoverable, and did and contimaenbrtize the related assets over their estimagetll lives. Our future operating results

will be impacted by the amortization of the contaghts and by the customer’s utilization of theviee credits. We will also review these
assets periodically to determine whether they eceverable during the remaining useful life. Revenfor services provided in exchange for
service credits will be recognized in accordandd wur revenue recognition policies.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Data Management & Research, 1On March 28, 2005, the Company acquired all ofstoek of Data Management & Research, Inc.
(DMR) for approximately $10.7 million, consisting $9.1 million in cash and 479,234 shares of oumewn stock. The Company also
incurred direct, incremental expenses associatddtihe acquisition of approximately $0.4 millionf tBe common stock portion, 319,489
shares were released from escrow to the formeebkbhter of DMR on September 28, 2006. DMR provigeslthcare organizations a wide
range of quality and satisfaction surveys, datdyaea of survey results, and other research-basegunement tools focused on physicians,
patients, and employees. This acquisition has beeounted for using the purchase method of acaoywniMFK's results of operations ha



been included in the Company’s results in the H@8i®ess unit from the date of the acquisition.
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The Jackson Organization, Research ConsultantsQndviarch 12, 2007, the Company acquired all ofitkaed and outstanding common
stock of The Jackson Organization, Research Cargsltinc. (TJO) for approximately $12.6 milliolmnsisting of approximately $11.6 milli
payable in cash and 252,616 shares of HealthStceamnmon stock. Approximately $5.0 million of the bansideration is being held in
escrow and will be released upon the occurrendetofe events. All of the common stock shares a&td m an escrow account until eighteen
months after March 12, 2007, and are subject tocaigns for indemnification pursuant to the stockghase agreement. The Company expects
direct, incremental expenses associated with theisition of TJO will approximate $0.7 million. TJ@ovides healthcare organizations with
quality and satisfaction surveys, data analysesinfey results, and other research-based measuréoén

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components oferewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofsedidperations.

RevenuesRevenues for our HCO business unit currently comsithe provision of services through our Interbased HealthStream Learning
Center (HLC), authoring tools, survey and reseamfrices, a variety of courseware subscriptiond-tatdcourseware) maintenance and sug
services for our installed learning management et maintenance of content, and competency tBagenues for our PMD business unit
consist of live event development, online trainamgl content development, online sales trainingsesyrive educational activities for nurses
and other professionals conducted within healthogaganizations, continuing education activitieaggociation meetings, and HospitalDir&ct

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues consists primarily of salariesemgloyee benefits, stock based
compensation, employee travel and lodging, materantract labor, hosting costs, and other degpenses associated with revenues as well
as royalties paid by us to content providers based percentage of revenues. Personnel costs wiblsinof revenues are associated with
individuals that facilitate product delivery, prdei services, handle customer support calls or ifgglimanage our web sites, content and
survey services, coordinate content maintenanasgcest and provide training or implementation segsi

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses consist primarilalafries and employee benefits, stock based compiemseontent
acquisition costs before technological feasibilityachieved, costs associated with the developoferintent and expenditures associated with
maintaining, developing and operating our trairdedjvery and administration platforms. In additipnpduct development expenses are
associated with the development of new softwartifeaeenhancements and new products. Personnelwitisis product development include
our systems team, product managers, and otherrpersassociated with content and product developisgsh product management.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses consist primarilplefies, commissions and employee benefits, staskd
compensation, employee travel and lodging, adwegtisrade shows, promotions, and related marketosgs. Annually, we host a national
users’ group in Nashville known as “The Summité tosts of which are included in sales and margetitpenses. Personnel costs within sales
and marketing include our sales and marketing ts#iategic account management, as well as our atosanagement group. Our account
management personnel work to ensure our produdtsemvices are fully utilized by our customers e consultations with new and
prospective customers, as well as support the atintenewal process for existing hospital customers

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed asgpreciation, amortization of intangibles consédito have
definite lives, amortization of content or licerfees, and amortization of capitalized softwaredfeaenhancements.

Other General and Administrative Expendg@ther general and administrative expenses consimayly of salaries and employee benefits,
stock based compensation, employee travel andrigdéacility costs, office expenses, fees for pssfenal services, and other operational
expenses. Personnel costs within general and astnaitive expenses include individuals associatéd mormal corporate functions
(accounting, legal, human resources, administrainternal information systems, and executive manzant) as well as accreditation
professionals.

Other Income/Expens&he primary component of other income is interesbime related to interest earned on cash, cashagois and
investments in marketable securities. The primampmonent of other expense is interest expensedetatcapital leases and our revolving
credit facility.
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2006 Compared to 2005

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $4.4 million,602%, to $31.8 million for 2006 from $27.4 millidor 2005. Revenues for 2006
consisted of $25.4 million for HCO and $6.4 millitor PMD. In 2005, revenues consisted of $21.2iamilfor HCO and $6.2 million for PMD.
HCO revenues include the results of DMR commenuiitly its acquisition on March 28, 2005.

Revenues for HCO increased approximately $4.3ani/lor 20.1%, during 2006. Growth in survey aneéagsh services associated with the
acquisition of DMR in March 2005 totaled $2.2 nailiiin 2006, of which $823,000 is the result of eigagrowth. Revenues from our Internet-
based HLC subscriber base increased $2.2 milli@en the prior year, resulting primarily from growthour subscriber base. Revenues fromr
courseware subscriptions increased $115,000, &6,35er the prior year, and included revenue irsgsaf $540,000 from several new
product offerings, but was partially offset by deek in revenue associated with HIPAA coursewabsatptions. We also experienced
expected declines in revenues from maintenanceapypbrt fees associated with our installed learniagagement products of $243,000. Our
Internet-based HLC subscriber base increased ajppatedy 15% during 2006, from approximately 1,178 6ully implemented subscribers at
the end of 2005 to approximately 1,352,000 fullpliemented subscribers at the end of 2006. We expeehues from our Internéased HLC
survey and research services, and add-on courséavererease in 2007. We anticipate that the adgtprisof TJO will result in an increase in
survey and research revenues of approximatelyt®220.0 million during 2007. We expect continuedlihes in revenues from our installed
learning management products during 2007.

Revenues for PMD increased approximately $141,000,3%, during 2006, and was primarily relateditowth in our online RepDirect
training courseware, sales of clinical educatigratlucts, and HospitalDiret. These revenue increases were partially offsetdnjines from
our project-based content development service®antive events and association business. We expattevenues from HospitalDirégand
online RepDirect” training courseware will increase during 2007. \Wpezt revenues from our live event services toideauring 2007 due
to a live event held during 2006 that is not reingrin 2007. We also expect revenues from projestel content development services will
remain comparable or decline slightly during 2087%& continue to transition our sales efforts tosstiption based products and other online
delivery methodologies.

During 2006, 58.9% of our revenues were derivethfour Internet-based learning products, 21.1% fsanvey and research services, 13.1%
from live event development services, 5.5% fromtenhdevelopment and maintenance services, and ftotfeour installed learning
management products. During 2005, 59.8% of ourrmaes were derived from our Internet-based learpiogucts, 16.4% from survey and
research services, 14.9% from live event developsenvices, 6.5% from content development and reaarice services, and 2.4% from our
installed learning management products.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaditin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $1.1anillor 11.5%, to $10.9 million
for 2006 from $9.7 million for 2005. The increasecbst of revenues resulted from incremental exggeassociated with the growth in survey
and research services, and higher direct costsiasst with the delivery of our live event servicparticularly a significant event held during
the second quarter of 2006. In addition, increaegdlties paid by us and stock based compensatipanse contributed to the increase in cost
of revenues over the prior year.

Cost of revenues for HCO was comparable betweers yerl approximated $5.5 million for 2006 and 2@Dést of revenue increases for HCO
resulted from the additional expenses associat#dthv increase in survey and research servicésydmipartially offset by lower personnel
expenses associated with direct product and sedeilbeery as well as redesignation of certain paighersonnel to product management. Cost
of revenues for HCO approximated 21.5% and 25.8W@D revenues for 2006 and 2005, respectively. ¥pe& cost of revenues for HCO
increase during 2007 due to royalties associatéuintreased courseware revenues. In additiondwityrin cost of revenues associated with
our organic survey and research products, HCOafasivenues will increase due to the addition dDTall center and operational personnel.

Cost of revenues for PMD increased approximatel #iillion, or 28.4%, to $4.7 million for 2006 fro88.7 million for 2005. This increase
primarily resulted from expense overages in pradaatosts associated with a significant live eveitl during the second quarter of 2006,
which resulted in a financial loss of approximat®B00,000. In addition increased royalties werel |bgi us that were associated with the
revenue increase from our online RepDiré¢taining courseware. We expect cost of revenuePkD during the full year 2007 to be
comparable with the full year of 2006 as a peragmtaf PMD revenue.

Cost of revenues for unallocated corporate funstionreased approximately $67,000, or 10.7%, t@¥8® for 2006 from $626,000 for 2005.
This increase was associated with increased peeberpenses. Cost of revenues for our corporatoeated functions is comprised of
content support personnel who handle loading, upglamaintenance, versioning and support of corterdur Internet-based learning
platforms, which serve products within both the H&@ PMD business units.

Gross Margin (excluding depreciation and amortieadi. Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessofastvenues divided by revenu
improved to 65.8% for 2006 from 64.4% during 200Bis improvement is primarily the result of revernnereases associated with our
Internet-based HLC, but was partially offset by éwnargins from our live events business. Grosgimsifor HCO were 78.5% and 74.2% for
2006 and 2005, respectively. This improvement tedutom increased revenues associated with oarrlat-based HLC product. Gross
margins for PMD were 25.9% and 41.0% for 2006 ab@b2 respectively. This decline resulted from theréase in cost of revenues discussed
above, primarily associated with a significant lexent during the second quarter of 2006. Grosgjimafor PMD are lower than HCO due to
the higher costs associated with delivering livergvand content development services, and vatigbilicosts associated with project-based
services. We expect gross margins for the full &7 will approximate our 2006 full year gross gias, including the impact of the TJO
acquisition.
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Product developmenProduct development expenses increased approxin®iéb,000, or 19.6%, to $3.5 million for 2006 fr&2.9 million

for 2005. This increase resulted from our HCO bessnand was associated with additional personpelnses and stock based compensation
expense. Product development efforts for 2006 \werearily associated with the development and daplent of our Next Generation HLC
product, the ongoing maintenance and support foeristing HLC learning products, and product paitf management as well as new
courseware offerings and competency tools. Prodien¢lopment expenses as a percentage of revenuesiapated 11.0% of revenues for
2006 compared to 10.7% of revenues for 2005. litiaddo the expenses incurred, we also capitalegggroximately $2.7 million and

$1.1 million of costs associated with developmdrgastware feature enhancements and content d@f0g and 2005, respectively. We expect
product development expenses for the full year 2060iicrease moderately, but to decline as a p&agerof revenue as we develop and
introduce new products in 2007.

Product development expenses for HCO increasedxzippaitely $745,000, or 32.6%, to $3.0 million f@056 from $2.3 million for 2005. The
increase resulted from additional personnel astetiaith the maintenance of our Internet-baseclagrproducts and the development and
deployment of new products, including our Next Gatien HLC. Product development expenses for PM&eaksed approximately $59,000
during 2006, approximating $329,000 for 2006 an88$300 for 2005. This decline is primarily due teeduction in product management
personnel. The unallocated corporate portion ofpwaduct development expenses decreased approiratel, 000, or 43.4%, to $144,000
for 2006 from $255,000 for 2005. This decreaselteddrom a shift of resources to support the patdievelopment efforts for our HCO
products.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses, including persomsés,ancreased approximately $1.6 million, or 28.8

$7.0 million for 2006 from $5.4 million for 2005nd approximated 22.1% and 19.9% of revenues fo6 20@ 2005, respectively. The incre
resulted from additional sales personnel and adamamagement personnel to support our HCO busiiressased direct marketing campaign
expenses, stock based compensation expense, aedsaed spending associated with our annual custoonéerence, The Summit, which was
attended by approximately 710 customer represgetain 2006 compared to approximately 540 in 2008 .expect sales and marketing
expenses for the full year 2007 to increase, batie comparable with the full year 2006 as a pdsgnof revenue.

Sales and marketing expense for HCO increased sippately $1.7 million, or 43.4%, to $5.6 millionrf@006 from $3.9 million for 2005, and
approximated 22.1% and 18.6% of HCO revenues fo62Md 2005, respectively. The expense increasessapciated with increases in sales
and account management personnel, and increasedisg@ssociated with direct marketing campaigmsEre Summit. Sales and marketing
expense for PMD decreased approximately $110,008.486, to $1.2 million for 2006 from $1.3 millidar 2005, and approximated 18.9%
and 21.1% of PMD revenues for 2006 and 2005, reéisede The decrease for PMD is associated withdogales commissions. Sales and
marketing expense for our unallocated corporatetfans decreased modestly during 2006.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxity&211,000, or 7.9%, to $2.9 million for 2006 from

$2.7 million for 2005. Amortization increased $3%X) associated with additional content fees andtaled software feature enhancements.
Depreciation declined by $132,000 resulting frontaia property and equipment reaching the end @f #stimated useful lives and fewer
capital expenditures needed to replace equipméntchvsomewhat offset the increase in amortizalge.expect depreciation and amortization
to increase during the full year 2007 comparedéoftill year 2006 due to increased amortizatiooeased with capitalized software feature
enhancements and content, and amortization ofiteefined intangible assets associated with theusiipn of TJO.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses increggaximately $635,000, or 12.8%, to $5.6 millfon
2006 from $5.0 million for 2005. This increase ismarily associated with stock based compensatipeese of $358,000, personnel expense
increases, higher employee recruiting costs, apérese increases associated with our status adia poimpany and other corporate support
functions. Other general and administrative expg@asea percentage of revenues decreased to 17:6300 from 18.1% for 2005. The
percentage decrease is a result of the increasesdnues.

Other Income/Expens@ther income/expense increased approximately $281dr 83.2%, to $619,000 for 2006 from $338,00Q2@05. This
increase resulted from an increase in interestigcon investment in marketable securities, attaiblat to both increased invested balances and
higher rates of return. We expect interest incoanelfe full year 2007 to decline due to the usa significant portion of our cash and
investments to acquire TJO in March 2007.

Provision for Income TaxeThe provision for income taxes for 2006 and 200&sisociated with the federal alternative minimura Taaxable
income for both 2006 and 2005 was substantiallgatfby the utilization of our net operating loseyf@rwards.

Net IncomeNet income increased approximately $587,000, or@0to $2.5 million for 2006 from $1.9 million f@005. The improvement
over 2005 resulted from the increase in revenudsoétmer factors mentioned above, noting that $682f stock based compensation was
expensed during 2006 with no comparable expensegB005. Net income is expected to improve in 260Mpared to the full year 2006,
resulting in diluted earnings per share betweeh38nd $0.15. These estimates reflect the acaunigiti TJO, but are subject to the risks and
uncertainties as further described in “Iltem 1A.lKRgactors” located elsewhere in this report.
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2005 Compared to 2004

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $7.3 million,604%, to $27.4 million for 2005 from $20.1 millidor 2004. Revenues for 2005
consisted of $21.2 million for HCO and $6.2 millitar PMD. In 2004, revenues consisted of $14.0iamilfor HCO and $6.1 million for PMD.

Revenues for HCO increased approximately $7.2 anillor 51.2%, during 2005 primarily related to ynand research revenues of

$4.5 million resulting from the acquisition of DMR March 2005, growth in our Internet-based HLCslber base of $2.0 million, $900,000
from growth in add-on courseware subscription reresnand $158,000 from content maintenance servitese HCO revenue increases were
partially offset by declines in revenues from meir@nce and support fees associated with our iedtearning management products of
$368,000. Our Interndiased HLC subscriber base increased approximadétyduring 2005, from approximately 1,040,000 futhplementec
subscribers at the end of 2004 to approximately3,00 fully implemented subscribers at the en208f5.

Revenues for PMD increased approximately $143,000,3%, during 2005, although the mix of revenctesnged. Revenues from live events
and online training courseware increased $272,0006891,000, respectively. These revenue incremsespartially offset by declines from
our project-based content development service$27 $00. Revenues from our HospitalDir@giroduct increased modestly during 2005.

On a pro forma basis, taking into considerationdtffiect of the DMR acquisition as if the acquisitioad occurred on January 1, 2004, pro
forma revenues for 2005 would have been $28.8anilliompared to $25.2 million for 2004.

During 2005, 59.8% of revenues were derived frominternet-based learning products, 16.4% from eyiand research services, 14.9% from
live event development services, 6.5% from condentlopment and maintenance services, and 2.4%dtorimstalled learning management
products. During 2004, 65.2% of revenues were ddrivom our Internebased learning products, 18.9% from live event kigreent services
10.7% from content development and maintenanceécssivand 5.2% from our installed learning managegmeoducts.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $2.5amillor 33.9%, to $9.8 million

for 2005 from $7.3 million for 2004. This increasas the result of the acquisition of DMR’s surveyl aesearch service business, including
personnel and other direct expenses, increasect éixpenses associated with live events, incresmedties paid by us to content partners, and
increased hosting expenses. These expense increasepartially offset by lower direct expenseaiged with the decline in revenues from
content development services.

Cost of revenues for HCO increased approximately $#llion, or 93.0%, to $5.5 million for 2005 frof2.8 million for 2004. This increase
consisted of incremental personnel and direct astsciated with DMR’s survey and research seryinegeases in personnel and contract
labor associated with content maintenance servaescrease in the royalties paid by us to corpgantners, as well as increased hosting
expenses.

Cost of revenues for PMD decreased approximatedp 00, or 5.2%, to $3.7 million for 2005 from $3m@lion for 2004. This decrease
resulted from lower direct expenses associated tvéldecline in revenues from content developmemntices and lower personnel expenses,
but was partially offset by royalties paid by usctmtent partners.

Cost of revenues for the unallocated corporatetfons increased approximately $41,000, or 6.9%9$6@6,000 for 2005 from $585,000 for
2004. This increase was associated with increasebpnel expenses.

Gross Margin (excluding depreciation and amortiga)i. Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessodastvenues divided by revenur
improved to 64.4% for 2005 from 63.7% during 200Mis improvement is a result of the change in rereemix and related cost of revenues
discussed above. Gross margins for HCO were 74r2%78.8% for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Thisidealesulted from the acquisition of
DMR’s survey and research services, which yield®eel gross margins than our Internet-based prodGetsss margins for PMD were 41.0%
and 36.3% for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Thisampment resulted from the change in revenue mi®fD noted above. Gross margins
PMD are lower than HCO due to the higher costsaassl with delivering live event and content depehent services, and variability of ca
associated with project-based services.

Product developmenProduct development expenses increased approxin%gelr,000, or 15.7%, to $2.9 million for 2005 fr&2.5 million

for 2004. This increase resulted from increasedqgrerel expenses associated with the DMR acquisdtimhadditional personnel to support and
maintain our Internet-based platform products. Bebdevelopment efforts for 2005 consisted prinyasflnew courseware offerings,
development of new software features, and the oggmiaintenance and support for our Intetnesed platform. Product development expe

as a percentage of revenues decreased as a fabhdtincreased revenues to 10.7% of revenuestiob Zrom 12.6% of revenues for 2004. In
addition to the expenses incurred, we also capé@dlapproximately $1.0 million and $900,000 of s@stsociated with development of softv
feature enhancements and content during 2005 &4 P8spectively.
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Product development expenses for HCO increasedxzippaitely $277,000, or 13.8%, to $2.3 million f@05 from $2.0 million for 2004. The
increase resulted from additional personnel astetiaith the acquisition of DMR. Product developtnexpenses for PMD were comparable
for both 2005 and 2004, approximating $388,00@f05 and $379,000 for 2004. The unallocated cotpgrartion of our product
development expenses increased approximately $20,000 76.3%, to $255,000 for 2005 from $145,0002f@04. This increase resulted from
time and efforts associated with corporate ovetsigld projects that were not specific to eitherti@O or PMD business units.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses, including persomsés,dncreased approximately $653,000, or 13.6%, t
$5.5 million for 2005 from $4.8 million for 2004nd approximated 19.9% and 23.9% of revenues fob 20@ 2004, respectively. The incre
resulted from additional personnel expenses agsalcweith the acquisition of DMR, increased comnaasexpense, and increased spending
associated with our annual customer conference STinemit, which was attended by 540 customer reptasees in 2005 compared to
approximately 400 in 2004.

Sales and marketing expense for HCO increased sippately $360,000, or 10.1%, to $3.9 million for@0from $3.6 million for 2004, and
approximated 18.6% and 25.5% of revenues for 20052804, respectively. The expense increase icassd with both DMR personnel and
increased spending associated with The Summits Salé marketing expense for PMD increased appragign&289,000, or 28.2%, to

$1.3 million for 2005 from $1.0 million for 2004nd approximated 21.1% and 16.9% of revenues fob 20@ 2004, respectively. This
increase for PMD was associated with increaseal@sersonnel and related commission expenses Satemarketing expense for our
unallocated corporate functions was comparable datvperiods.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxity&&72,000, or 27.1%, to $2.7 million for 20050
$2.1 million for 2004. The increase was associatitl amortization of DMR intangible assets, amatian of capitalized content and software
feature enhancements, and depreciation of propadyequipment.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses increggaaximately $324,000, or 7.0%, to $5.0 million f
2005 from $4.6 million for 2004, and approximatei1P6 and 23.1% of revenues for 2005 and 2004, ctispl/. This expense increase
resulted primarily from the additional personned affice expenses associated with the DMR acqaisitand was partially offset by other
corporate expense savings. The decrease as a fagre@f revenues was the result of the increasevienues.

Other Income/Expens@ther income/expense increased approximately $06@9.3%, to $338,000 for 2005 from $242,0002@04. This
increase resulted from an increase in interestigcon investment in marketable securities, andpaatsally offset by increased interest
expense associated with capital lease obligations.

Provision for Income TaxeThe provision for income taxes for 2005 consistefiai,500 associated with the federal alternativ@mum tax.
Taxable income for 2005 was substantially offsethgyutilization of our net operating loss carryfards.

Net Income (LossNet income was $1.9 million for 2005 compared twealloss of $1.0 million for 2004. The improvemé&woim a net loss in
2004 to net income in 2005 resulted from the ineega revenues and other factors mentioned above.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected stateméiiperations data for the eight quarters ended Dbee 31, 2006 both in absolute dollars and
as a percentage of total revenues. The inform#&tioeach quarter has been prepared on substarttiallyame basis as the audited statements
included in other parts of this report and, in opinion, includes all adjustments, consisting diyarormal recurring adjustments, necessary for
a fair presentation of the results of operatiomgtiese periods. You should read this informationdnjunction with HealthStream’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and related rioggsto included elsewhere in this report. Therajrgg results for any quarter are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expkatahe future.

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscription products are reeegniatably over the subscription term. Revenums Bales of products and services to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies caulject to seasonal factors resulting from thengrf conferences and live events as well
as drug and product introductions and budget cyfolesuch companies. DMR’s survey and researchmgs® are impacted by seasonal factors
resulting from the timing of survey cycles, wittetfourth quarter comprising the highest percentdgsnual revenues. The results of
operations for DMR have been included in the Comfsastatements of operations, effective March ZH)3 Effective January 1, 2006, our
results of operations include stock based compiemsakpense associated with the adoption SFAS R8(R) “Share-Based Payment.”

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2006 2006 2006 2006
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenues, ne $ 7,52: $ 8,22 $ 7,481 $ 8,55¢
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin) 2,57¢ 3,16: 2,37¢ 2,75¢
Product developmel 88¢ 837 891 88¢
Sales and marketir 1,62¢ 2,03: 1,64¢ 1,71(
Depreciatior 33€ 32¢ 37t 367
Amortization 30¢ 33¢ 38t 452
Other general and administrative exper 1,237 1,397 1,50¢ 1,45(C
Total operating costs and expen 6,974 8,09¢ 7,18¢ 7,61¢
Income from operation 54¢ 12¢ 29t 937
Other income, ne 134 152 165 167
Income before income tax 68< 281 46C 1,10¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 25 (8) (14) 25
Net income $ 65€ $ 28¢ $ 474 $ 1,07¢
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.0z $ 0.0t
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.0z $ 0.0t
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic 21,28¢ 21,47¢ 21,61¢ 21,92¢
Diluted 22,13¢ 22,46¢ 22,36¢ 22,46!
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2005 2005 2005 2005

(In thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenues, ne $ 5,682 $ 6,80¢ $ 6,831 $ 8,04
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin) 2,03¢ 2,46( 2,392 2,85¢
Product developmel 63€ 743 72C 82¢
Sales and marketir 1,19(C 1,601 1,34( 1,321
Depreciatior 40¢ 40z 374 354
Amortization 21C 35¢€ 27¢ 294
Other general and administrative exper 1,15¢ 1,272 1,24t 1,28¢
Total operating costs and expen 5,63¢ 6,83¢ 6,34¢ 6,941
Income (loss) from operatiol 46 (30 482 1,09¢
Other income, ne 98 68 72 10C
Income before income tax 144 38 554 1,19¢
Provision for income taxe — 15 — 7
Net income $ 144 $ 28 $ 554 $ 1,197
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.01 $ 0.0C $ 0.0 $ 0.0¢

Diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.0C $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢




Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic 20,68¢ 21,05¢ 21,21; 21,25:

Diluted 21,46 22,06/ 22,35] 21,88:
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Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2006 2006 2006 2006
(% of Revenues)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue: 100.( 100.C 100.¢ 100.(
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 34.2 38.4 31.¢ 32.2
Product developmel 11.¢ 10.Z 11.¢ 10.z
Sales and marketir 217 24.7 22.C 20.C
Depreciatior 45 4.0 5.1 4.3
Amortization 4.1 4.1 5.1 5.3
Other general and administrative exper 16.4 17.C 20.2 16.€
Total operating costs and expen 92.7 98.4 96.1 89.C
Income from operation 7.3 1.6 3. 11.C
Other income, ne 1.8 1.8 2.2 1.9
Income before income tax 9.1 34 6.1 12.¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 0.3 (0.7) (0.2) 0.3
Net income 8.8 3.5 6.3 12.€
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005

(% of Revenues)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue! 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.(
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin) 35.¢ 36.1 35.C 35.¢
Product developmel 11.2 10.€ 10.t 10.2
Sales and marketir 20.€ 23.t 19.€ 16.4
Depreciatior 7.2 5.9 5.5 4.4
Amortization 3.7 5.3 4.1 3.7
Other general and administrative exper 20.3 18.7 18.2 16.C
Total operating costs and expen 99.2 100.4 92.¢ 86.2
Income (loss) from operatiol 0.8 (0.9 7.1 13.7
Other income, ne 1.7 1.C 1.1 1.2
Income before income tax 2.5 0.6 8.1 14.¢€
Provision for income taxe — 0.2 — 0.1
Net income 2.5 0.4 8.1 14.¢

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our operatlargely through proceeds from our IPO, privatepments of equity securities, loans from
related parties and, to an increasing extent, frewvenues generated from the sale of our produdsarvices.

Net cash provided by operating activities was axipnately $4.0 million during 2006 compared to $@m#lion during 2005. Although ot
revenues increased and net income improved overibeyear, working capital increases associatid accounts and unbilled receivables
negatively impacted our cash flows from operati@sc primary sources of cash are generated froeipecfrom the sales of our products and
services, as well as receipts associated with camialasupport grants. Cash receipts associatedagithmercial support grants are often
received after we have made payments for which guathts are to be used. At December 31, 2006,aseein our accounts and unbilled
receivable balances were partially attributablsutoh timing. The $1.8 million increase in accourteivable at December 31, 2006 compared
to December 31, 2005 resulted in a correspondiaig@se in the number of days sales outstanding YOI3&D was 64 days for 2006 compa

to 59 days for 2005. This increase resulted prim&mom delays in cash receipts from commercialpgrpgrants, of which a portion relate to
pass through expenses we paid during 2006. The @oyngalculates DSO by dividing the average accowtsivable balance (excluding
unbilled and other receivables) by average daikgmees for the year. The primary uses of cashrtd dur operations include personnel
expenses, payments of employee bonuses, sales seiong, royalty payments, payments for contraaralnd other direct expenses
associated with delivery of our products and sewj@and general corporate expenses, as well asepéyassociated with content development.
Cash generated from operating activities duringb2@3ulted from cash receipts from customers aceipts of commercial support grants,
which exceeded cash used to fund our operatingnsese
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Net cash provided by investing activities was appnately $536,000 for 2006 while $3.1 million ofstewas used in 2005. During 2006,
primary uses of cash related to payments assoocitedoftware feature enhancements and propedyegnipment purchases. These purcl
were associated with development costs of our &xteration HLC and other new products as well edweare and software to support our
Internet-based product infrastructure and leaseingbdovements for our corporate headquarters. titiath, during 2006 we incurred
approximately $270,000 of expenses associatedthatiMarch 2007 acquisition of TIO. These uses sif @gere offset by the net proceeds
from sales of investments in marketable securibesing 2005, we utilized approximately $9.5 milliof cash and investments to purchase
DMR, $752,000 for purchases of property and equiiraad $626,000 for software feature enhancemetiish was partially offset by net
proceeds from sales of investments in marketaldergies.

Cash provided by financing activities was approxeha$466,000 and $722,000 during 2006 and 20Gheweively. The primary sources of
cash for both 2006 and 2005 resulted from procassaciated with the issuance of common stock froth the exercise of employee stock
options and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,tdf§spayments under capital lease obligations. Caséived from stock options is
dependent on many factors, including our stockepraption exercise prices, and the option holdetent to exercise. Due to these factors we
are unable to estimate future proceeds from stptikms.

As of December 31, 2006, our primary source ofitlqy was $12.8 million of cash and cash equivaerngstricted cash, investments in
marketable securities, and related interest reblavdhe Company also has a revolving credit fgciian agreement, of which the available
balance was increased from $7.0 million to $10.0ioniin February 2007, subject to certain covesak¥e believe this loan agreement
provides us additional ability to fund investmewighin our business, including any potential futbresiness acquisitions. There were no
amounts outstanding under this loan agreement Beagmber 31, 2006, and we had no indebtednessstbtrecapital lease obligations.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equitgleestricted cash, investments in marketablergexs and related interest receivable, and
available borrowings under our revolving creditiligcwill be sufficient to meet anticipated casheds for working capital, new product
development and capital expenditures for at ldashext 12 months. As part of our growth strategg/are actively reviewing possible
acquisitions that complement our products and sesviOn March 12, 2007, we acquired TJO for $11lGomin cash, utilizing a significant
portion of our cash and investment balances, a¢625 shares of our common stock. We anticipateaima future acquisitions would be
effected through a combination of stock and castsiceration. We may need to raise additional chgfitaugh the issuance of equity or debt
securities and/or borrowings under our revolvingddrfacility, or other facility, to finance anytfure acquisitions. The issuance of our stock as
consideration for an acquisition would have a diieffect and could adversely affect our stock@riThere can be no assurance that addit
sources of financing will be available to us onepteble terms, or at all, to consummate any adpnsi Failure to generate sufficient cash
flow from operations or raise additional capitalemtrequired in sufficient amounts and on terms ptedge to us could harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Commitments and Contingencies

We expect that our capital expenditures, softwaature enhancements, and content purchases withdpate $5.0 million in 2007. We

expect to fund these capital expenditures withtexgscash and investments and from cash generadeddperations, and if necessary from our
revolving credit facility. From January 1 througbkfuary 28, 2007, we had capital expenditures pfapmately $527,000, primarily related
hardware, software, content, and software feathaecements.

Our strategic alliances have typically providedgayments to content partners based on revenuedesetbpment partners and other parties
based on services rendered. We expect to contimikaisarrangements in the future. We also haverogments for our live event services
associated with securing hotel arrangements, wdmiehypically fully funded from commercial suppgrants. In addition to these
commitments, we have capital lease obligationséonputer hardware and operating lease commitmentsufr operating facilities in
Nashville, TN, Franklin, TN, and Denver, CO, anda@sed facility in Dallas, TX, which we sublea

A summary of future anticipated payments for cormmeiits and other contractual obligations as of Déegr@1, 2006 are outlined below:

Payments due by peric

More than !
Less than 1 ye 1-3 years 3-5 years years Total
Capital lease obligatior $ 193,61 $111,33: $ — $ — $ 304,94!
Operating lease 706,62¢ 779,74 116,40° — 1,602,771
Purchase commitmen 217,89:. 97,20( — — 315,09:
Other contractual obligatior 1,436,68 — — — 1,436,68
Total $ 2,554,81i $988,27" $116,40° $ — $3,659,50!
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company’s off-balance sheet arrangements aledied in the table of commitments listed aboveaddition, the Company’s other
significant off-balance sheet arrangement relateéké Revolving Credit Facility, and is describadtfier in Note 13 to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements contained elsenimethis report.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “AccountiogUncertainty in Income Taxes ar
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48This Interpretation clarifies the accounting forcartainty in income taxes recognizec
the financial statements, and requires companiasda more-likely-than-not recognition threshaddd on the technical merits of the tax
position taken. Tax positions that meet the mdteli-thannot recognition threshold should be measured ierot@ determine the tax benefi
be recognized in the financial statements. FINsA&ffiective in fiscal years beginning after Decenilie 2006. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 4B lmave on its financial position and results gleoations. The Company is required to adopt
the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007.

On September 15, 2006, the FASB issued, SFAS NG.“Fair Value Measurements.” The standard proviglgdance for using fair value to
measure assets and liabilities and applies wherther standards require (or permit) assets oilitiab to be measured at fair value. The
standard does not expand the use of fair valueaymaw circumstances. SFAS No. 157 is effectivdif@ancial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. Manageiséntthe process of evaluating the impact of ttés/ standard on the Compi's
financial position and results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢"Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finandabilities.” This new standard
provides companies with an option to report sete@iteancial assets and liabilities at fair valuen@rally accepted accounting principles have
required different measurement attributes for déffie assets and liabilities that can create aidifwnlatility in earnings. The FASB believes
that Statement 159 helps to mitigate this typecobantinginduced volatility by enabling companies to repettated assets and liabilities at-
value, which would likely reduce the need for comipa to comply with detailed rules for hedge acdimgn Statement 159 also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements designtilitate comparisons between companies thavshdifferent measurement attributes for
similar types of assets and liabilities. The neat&nent does not eliminate disclosure requiremenbsded in other accounting standards,
including requirements for disclosures about failue measurements included in SFAS No. 157 and ®d. This Statement is effective
beginning January 1, 2008 for the Company, withyesatoption permitted under certain circumstandésnagement is currently evaluating the
impact that adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have ba Company’s financial position and results of agiens

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstarates. We do not have any foreign currencyangd rate risk or commodity price risk.
As of December 31, 2006, we had no outstandingatedimess other than approximately $283,000 of @klpiase obligations. In February 2C
we increased the amount available under our rengleredit facility from $7.0 million to $10.0 miin. We may become subject to interest rate
market risk associated with borrowings under théglit facility, which bears interest at a varialdée based on the 30 Day LIBOR Rate plus
150 basis points. We are also exposed to marketvith respect to our cash and investment balareBecember 31, 2006, the Company had
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, inee$snm marketable securities, and related inteeestivable totaling approximately

$12.8 million. Current investment rates of retupproximate 5.0-5.5%. Assuming a 5.25% rate of retur $12.8 million, a hypothetical 10%
decrease in interest rates would decrease inte@she and decrease net income on an annualizé&itiaapproximately $67,000.

The Company manages its investment risk by invgstircorporate debt securities, foreign corporatietdsecured corporate debt, and
municipal debt securities with minimum acceptalskdi ratings. For certificates of deposit and cogpe obligations, ratings must be A2/A or
better; A1/P1 or better for commercial paper; ABtbetter for taxable or tax advantaged auctioa saturities and AAA or better for tax free
auction rate securities. The Company also reqtiir@sall securities must mature within 24 montlufrthe original settlement date, the ave
portfolio shall not exceed 18 months, and the greatt 10% or $5.0 million shall mature within 90ydaFurther, the Company’s investment
policy also limits concentration exposure and ofy@ential risk areas. As of December 31, 2006pfadiur investments in marketable securi
were in auction rate securities. During March 2Q0FFinvestments in marketable securities, totahpgroximately $1.7 million, were sold in
order to fund the acquisition of TJO.

The above market risk discussion and the estimatezlints presented are forwdomdking statements of market risk assuming the oecge o
certain adverse market conditions. Actual resualthé future may differ materially from those piigd as a result of actual developments ii
market.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2(®15 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholkelgugty, and cash flows for each of the three gearthe period ended December 31, 2006.
These financial statements are the responsibititiedo Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isxXpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait @futhie Company'’s internal control over finanadiaporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@love present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 20@btlee consolidated results of its operations &éddsh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 11 to the consolidatadcial statements, the Company changed its nledfi@accounting for share-based
payments in accordance with Statement of Finakgabunting Standards No. 123(FBhare-Based Paymenbn January 1, 2006.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 27, 2007
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assett

Cash and cash equivalel

Investments in marketable securit

Restricted cas

Interest receivabl

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $112,234 and $115,090 at Decembe
2006 and 2005, respective

Accounts receivabl— unbilled

Prepaid development fees, net of amortiza

Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Total current asse

Property and equipmer

Equipment

Leasehold improvemen

Furniture and fixture

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Capitalized software feature enhancements, net@fraulated amortization of $622,298 and $249,2°
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respecti'

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifdv,756,161 and $7,247,828 at December 31, 200!
2005, respectivel

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and related expe
Registration liabilities
Commercial support liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Total current liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current por
Other long term liabilitie:
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:
Common stock, no par value, 75,000,000 shares aztllp 21,928,687 and 21,574,904 shares is
and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005%¢ctgply
Accumulated defici
Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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December 31,

December 31,

2006 2005
$10,72578 $ 5,726,15
1,700,00! 6,175,001
264,71 238,53t
68,43t 54,52
6,518,62: 4,691,40;
1,274,51 706,01
1,055,13! 548,08
603,46 488,32
22,210,66 18,628,03
8,218,52! 7,446,45
1,773,70: 1,281,461
1,091,49. 1,011,87
11,083,72 9,739,78:
(8,899,86)  (7,636,30)
2,183,85 2,103,48;
2,572,11 720,44
10,317,39 10,317,39
2,755,98. 3,264,31.
968,48« 182,47
$41,008,48 $35,216,14
$ 1,616,100 $ 933,89
2,465,12; 1,487,56:
874,06« 639,46¢
240,39¢ 231,14:
315,21( 1,239,12:
5,375,62! 4,502,92:
176,57 166,02:
11,063,10 9,200,14:
106, 78( 215,85¢
204,16 —
95,134,55  93,799,93
(65,500,11)  (67,999,79)
29,634,43 25,800,14
$41,008,48 $35,216,14
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Revenues, ne $31,783,46 $27,359,40 $20,057,30
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 10,869,30 9,745,47| 7,277,17.

Product developmel 3,502,791 2,928,11. 2,531,17

Sales and marketir 7,020,05. 5,452,16! 4,798,68

Depreciatior 1,405,611 1,537,95! 1,366,211

Amortization of intangibles, content fees and saffeature enhanceme 1,483,55: 1,140,48: 740,54.

Other general and administrative exper 5,593,02 4,958,50! 4,634,37

Total operating costs and expen 29,874,33 25,762,69 21,348,17

Income (loss) from operatiol 1,909,13. 1,596,701 (1,290,86))
Other income (expense

Interest and other incon 657,43: 367,70° 258,14

Interest expens (36,715 (23,529 (23,099

Other expens (2,127) (6,467) (2,56%)

Total other income (expens 618,59: 337,72 242,48

Income (loss) before income tax 2,527,72. 1,934,42! (1,048,380

Provision for income taxe 28,04« 21,50( —
Net income (loss $ 2,499,68! $ 1,912,92i $(1,048,38))
Net income (loss) per shal

Basic $ 0.12 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05)

Diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05)
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 21,576,55 21,051,37. 20,585,82

Diluted 22,358,64 21,942,18 20,585,82

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Other Total
Common Stock Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Deficit Income Equity
Balance at December 31, 2C 20,455,74 $91,416,85  $(68,864,33) $ 5,47¢ $22,557,98
Net loss — — (1,048,38) — (1,048,380
Unrealized loss on investments in marketable sees)
net of tax — — — (5,475 (5,475
Comprehensive los (1,053,85)
Exercise of stock optior 121,50 148,80 — — 148,80
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purc
Plan 90,26¢ 76,72¢ — — 76,72¢
Balance at December 31, 20 20,667,51 91,642,38 (69,912,71) — 21,729,66.
Net income — — 1,912,92i — 1,912,92
Exercise of stock optior 344,41 654,95! — — 654,95!
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purc
Plan 83,74 159,44! — — 159,44!
Issuance of common stock in connection v
acquisition 479,23: 1,343,14! — — 1,343,14!
Balance at December 31, 2C 21,574,90 93,799,93 (67,999,79) — 25,800,14
Net income — — 2,499,68! — 2,499,68!
Stock based compensati — 682,06¢ — — 682,06¢
Exercise of stock optior 285,68: 490,46’ — — 490,46’
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purc
Plan 68,10: 162,08: — — 162,08:
Balance at December 31, 2C 21,928,68 $95,134,55  $(65,500,11) $ — $29,634,43

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.

35




Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided by operating activitie

Depreciatior

Amortization of intangibles, content fees and saftsvfeature enhancemel

Stock based compensation expe
Impairment of capitalized software feature enharems
Provision for doubtful accoun
Realized loss on disposal of property and equipr
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exatydffects of acquisition:
Accounts and unbilled receivabl
Restricted cas
Interest receivabl
Prepaid development fe
Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities and compensati
Registration liabilities
Commercial support liabilitie
Deferred revenu

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition, net of cash acquir

Proceeds from maturities and sale of investmentsarketable securitie
Purchases of investments in marketable secu

Other asset

Collection of note receivab— related party

Payments associated with capitalized software feanohancemen
Purchases of property and equipm

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock PurchEst
Proceeds from exercise of stock optii

Payments on capital lease obligati

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital lease obligations incurr
Acquisition of content rights in exchange for fidigervice:
Issuance of common stock in connection with actiaisiof company

Effects of acquisition
Estimated fair value of tangible assets acqu
Estimated fair value of liabilities assum
Purchase price in excess of net tangible assetsradi
Less fair value of stock issut
Cash paic
Less cash acquire

For the Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
$ 2,499,68! $ 1,912,92 $ (1,048,38)
1,405,611 1,537,95! 1,366,211
1,483,55. 1,140,48. 740,54
682,06¢ — —
— 55,00( —
15,00( 40,00( 40,00(
2,713 5,69¢ 1,152
(2,410,72) (524,469 (1,415,51))
(26,17¢) (54,497 539,83
(13,917 (28,625 93,36¢
(730,08)) (428,509 (612,949
(115,13) 164,61 197,44
2,80¢ 91,04« (65,48
682,21( 68,15¢ (34,03¢)
657,15 475,07 260,72:
9,257 56,44¢ (560,56¢)
(923,919 860,23: 378,89!
777,70: 427,71( 807,03
3,997,81: 5,799,23! 688,27:
— (9,524,07) —
18,785,00 20,500,00 18,951,00
(14,303,81)  (12,650,00)  (19,077,04)
(270,00, — —
— — 233,001
(2,274,68)) (626,127 (312,806
(1,400,63) (752,227 (1,620,90)
535,85¢ (3,052,42)  (1,826,75)
162,08 159,44! 76,72¢
490,46 654,95! 148,80:
(186,59’ (92,440 (49,487
465,95¢ 721,96( 176,04¢
4,999,62! 3,468,77! (962,43Y)
5,726,15: 2,257,37. 3,219,80°
$10,725,78 $ 5,726,15. $ 2,257,37.
$ 36,40/ $ 23,52 $ 13,09t
$ 2100 $ 15000 $ —
$ 88,067 $ 420,77 $ 62,80¢
$ 904160 $ — 3 —
$ — $ 1,343,14 $ —
$ — $ 71835 $ —
— (494,02¢) —
— 10,660,70 —
— (1,343,14) —
— 9,541,88 —

(17,81)




Net cash paid for acquisitic $ — $ 952407 $

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstaigements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorpordteti990 as a Tennessee corporation and is headgegin Nashville, Tennessee. We
provide Internebased services and solutions to meet the ongaagrig, information, and education needs of thdtheare community. The:
solutions provide, deliver and track computer basshatation for our customers in the United Stadtesugh our application service provider
(ASP) products and installed learning managemestdymts. We also provide healthcare organization&la range of quality and satisfaction
surveys, analyses of survey results, and othearelsdased services. We also develop, manage,istnidute live, online and print education
and training activities for provider-based healtkgarofessionals and physicians as well as onlilueation and training activities for sales
representatives, which are all supported by phaenotézal and medical device companies.

Business Segments

We operate our business in two segments: 1) sarpiaer/ided to healthcare organizations and prafesss, and 2) services provided to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies. SEnv@healthcare organizations and professionelsde offerings of our Internet-based
learning products, including authoring, survey aggkarch services, maintenance and support ofstalled learning management products,
courseware subscriptions, content maintenancecamgbetency tools. Our services to pharmaceutichhaedical device companies include
live and online educational training activities fagalthcare professionals, content developmentcasvas well as online training for medical
industry representatives.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thnaug Internet-based learning products, provisibsuovey and research services,
maintenance and support of our installed learniagagement products, courseware subscriptionseligat development, content mainteng
and development and other education and trainingcss.

We recognize revenue in accordance with Americatitie of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) &ment of Position (SOP) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition,” SEC Staff AccougtBulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition,” Emergisgues Task Force (EITF) Issue
No. 9¢-19 “Reporting Revenue Gross Versus Net,” EITFdésNo. 00-3 “Application of AICPA Statement of Pawit 97-2, Software Revenue
Recognition, to Arrangements that Include the Rightilse Software Stored on Another Entity’s HardsyaEITF Issue No. 00-21 “Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” and otlaerthoritative guidance. This guidance provides teatnue recognized from software and
other arrangements is to be allocated to each efenfi¢che arrangement based on the relative fdiresaof the elements. While elements
include software products and post contract custameport, fair value of each element is basedaative evidence specific to the vendor. If
fair value cannot be determined for each elemetti®fairrangement, all revenue from the arrangemetdferred until fair value can be
determined or until all elements of the arrangenaeatdelivered and customer acceptance has occ@adzb of our Internet-based learning
products include customer support, implementat&rmises, and training; therefore all revenues aferded until the Internet-based learning
product is implemented, at which time revenues@cegnized ratably over the subscription servia#opeIn the event that circumstances
occur, which give rise to uncertainty regarding ¢b#ectibility of contracted amounts, revenue ggition is suspended until such uncertainty
is resolved. Fees for these services are billegither a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis.

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesuphoour Internebased learning products and courseware subscrpgi@recognized ratal
over the term of the subscription service agreen&uwitware support and maintenance revenues agseigth our installed learning
management products are recognized ratably ovdetheof the related agreement, generally one y@ther training revenues are generally
recognized upon the completion of training.

Revenues recognized from our survey and researeitag are determined using the proportional perforce method. Revenues are earned
over the estimated survey cycle, which typicallyges from less than one month to up to four morithe.survey cycle is generally initiated
based on the receipt of the first survey responderans through provision of related survey reptortthe customer. All other revenues are
recognized as the related services are performpdbducts are delivered. Fees for these servieebiked upon initiation of the survey cycle,
with progress billings made throughout the survwegle
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Revenues derived from live event development sesvice recognized using the proportional performanethod based on the completion of
performance milestones. Revenues from content sra@nice and development services are recognizeg agiarcentage of completion met
based on labor hours, which correspond to the cetiopl of performance milestones and deliverabldisother revenues are recognized as the
related services are performed or products argetelil. Fees for these services are billed at fiuitieof the project and upon completion of the
project.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tlo®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alfld@th are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etediimaconsolidation.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to tho paar’s financial statements to conform with tlierent year presentation.

We have classified capitalized software featureaenbments as a separate long term asset in onci@atatements based on our increased
investments in software feature enhancements d@200g. We have made a corresponding reclassifitédidhe December 31, 2005 balance
sheet to present separately capitalized softwarteife enhancements which were previously includigtim/Prepaid expenses and other
current assets” and “Other assets.” We have atdassified our payments associated with capitalsadtivare feature enhancements to present
those payments in the investing activities seatithin the statement of cash flows for the yeardezghDecember 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetiets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assmsihiat affect the amounts reported in the findrsté&tements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codatdid financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash and cash equivalents to be uictedtrhighly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.

Restricted Cash

Cash received for registration fees is classiftedestricted cash on the accompanying consolidz&thce sheets. The use of this cash is
restricted because it is held on behalf of the cenaial supporter until services have been rendeteghich time the registration fees are used
to pay certain expenses and fees for conductingetBervices. Excess registration funds are typicaihitted to the commercial supporter or
applied to other projects. Any deficiency in regatibn funds is billed to the commercial supporter.

Accounts Receivable-Unbilled and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents revenueegbior contracts accounted for on the proportipesformance basis for which invoices
have not been generated or contractual billinggdatee not been reached. Deferred revenue repsesmmounts, which have been billed or
collected, but not yet recognized in revenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mggraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bastgkdacts and circumstances surrounding each fatgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are writteoff in the period management believes it has exiealusvery opportunity to collect payment from thistomer. Bad del
expense is recorded when events or circumstandesate an additional allowance is required basedwrspecific identification approach.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaedamounts charged to bad debt expense werelasdol

Allowance Balance at Charged to Costs and Allowance Balance at
Beginning of Period Expenses Write-offs End of Period
Year ended December &
2006 $115,09( $15,00( $ 17,85¢ $112,23:
2005 $234,16° $40,00( $159,07° $115,09(
2004 $278,50: $40,00( $ 84,33t $234,16°

Investments in marketable securities

Investments in marketable securities are class##dvailable-for-sale and are stated at fair ntarddeie, with any unrealized gains and losses,
net of tax, reported in other comprehensive incoméhe accompanying consolidated balance sheetdizBe gains and losses and declines in
market value judged to be other-than-temporaryneestments in marketable securities are includedt@rest and other income on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatidrescost of securities sold is based on the spedéntification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availablesfie are included in interest and other incoméheraccompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

The Company invests in auction rate securitiea@ate debt securities, foreign corporate debtsaudred corporate debt securities with
minimum acceptable credit ratings. The Companystfias investments in auction rate securities astgierm investments although their
scheduled maturities may be greater than 12 momtiis.determination is based on management’s irteholding such securities for less than
12 months from the current balance sheet date.

Capitalized Software Feature Enhancements

We account for capitalized software feature enheueces in accordance with SOP 98-1 “Accounting lier €osts of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Capitaliaeftware feature enhancements are stated orattie &if cost, and are presented net of
accumulated amortization. We capitalize costs irezliduring the development phase for such projehen such costs are material. These
assets are amortized using the straight-line metpeerally over one to four years. The Companytaliged approximately $2.3 million and
$626,000 during 2006 and 2005, respectively. Maigtee and operating costs are expensed as incAsed.December 31, 2006 and 2005,
we had no capitalized internal development costsdmputer software developed for resale.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basigstf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assetder capital leases and leasehold improvemetiishvare amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or their respective leasmter

Years
Furniture and fixture 5-1C
Equipment 35

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee fair value of net tangible assets acquired. Wé®ant for goodwill and intangible assets
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitan8ards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other IntbigAssets.” We measure goodwill
for impairment at the reporting unit level usingiacounted cash flow model to determine the faine®f the reporting units. We will perform
our goodwill impairment test whenever events omgles in facts or circumstances indicate that inmpait may exist, or at least annually
during the fourth quarter each year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Intangible assets acquired through acquisitionsaneprised of content, contract rights, customktienships, non-competition agreements
and favorable lease rights. As of December 31, 20@/gible assets with remaining unamortized badarinclude contract rights, customer
relationships and non-competition agreements recbiid connection with the acquisition of Data Magagnt and Research, Inc. (DMR).
Intangible assets are considered to have defisi#éulilives and are being amortized on a straigktlbasis over the expected periods to be
benefited, generally three to five years for cohtemo to eight years for contract rights, custotiss and customer relationships, six months to
three years for non-competition agreements, andtbeelease term for favorable lease rights. Ougkted average amortization period for
definite lived intangible assets as of December2B06 is 7.7 years. Intangible assets are revidamrithpairment whenever events or changes
in facts or circumstances indicate that the cag@imount of the assets may not be recoverable.

Long-Lived Assets

We account for assets of a long term nature (“lved assets”) in accordance with SFAS No. 14 counting for the Impairment or Dispo:

of Long-Lived Assets,” which requires that companiensider whether events or changes in facts iatuhtstances, both internally and
externally, may indicate that an impairment of ldivgd assets held for use are present. We measyrénpairment at the reporting unit level
based on discounted future cash flows from thertgmpunit including the long-lived assets. Thelcllew estimates and discount rates
incorporate management'’s best estimates, usingppate and customary assumptions and projectibtiealate of evaluation. Management
periodically evaluates the carrying value of longdl assets, including property and equipment,raksets and intangible assets. We recorded
a $55,000 impairment charge within our HCO segnasabciated with capitalized software feature endraeaits for the year ended

December 31, 2005. There were no impairments iflettor recorded for the years ended December @16 &r 2004.

Other Assets
Other assets are comprised of the long term podi@ontent development fees and other assetsooigaterm nature.

Income Taxes

Income taxes have been provided using the liabiigghod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounfior Income Taxes.” Under the
liability method, deferred tax assets and liatagfitare determined based on the temporary diffesdretgveen the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities measured at taz taat will be in effect for the year in which thiéferences are expected to affect taxable
income. Management reviews the realizability ofedefd tax assets each period and has establish#d/aluation allowance for net deferred
tax assets at year-end in order to reduce deféaredssets to amounts that are more likely thaexpécted to be realized. Under SFAS No.
109, all available evidence, both positive and tiggashould be considered to determine whethesetb@n the weight of that evidence, a
valuation allowance is needed. Future realizatioihe tax benefit of an existing deductible tempypwdifference or carryforward ultimately
depends on the existence of sufficient taxablermeof the appropriate character within the carrkbmccarryforward period available under
the tax law. SFAS No. 109 identifies four possixeirces of taxable income that may be availablewutie tax law to realize a tax benefit for
deductible temporary differences and carryforwatdguture reversals of existing taxable tempowdifierences, 2) future taxable income
exclusive of reversing temporary differences amdyéarwards, 3) taxable income in prior carryba@ay(s) if carryback is permitted under the
tax law, and 4) tax-planning strategies that woifldecessary, be implemented to realize deductéstgporary differences or carryforwards
prior to their expiration. Until the Company hapexiod of sustained and predictable profitabilionsistent with realizing some portion of the
benefit from deferred tax assets, a valuation alove will be maintained.

Commercial Support Liabilities
Commercial support liabilities represent grant finglceived from entities supporting educationaligts, such as live events, in which we are
the accredited provider. The funds are unrestrjciad are primarily used to pay for expenses aattiwith conducting the event.

Accrual for Service Interruptions

We maintain an accrual for service interruptioret thay occur from our Internet-based learning pctglurhe accrual is estimated using
management’s judgment and analysis of potentiklaidoss associated with downtime of our hostepliaptions. At December 31, 2006, and
2005, the accrual for service interruptions balamae approximately $314,000 and $264,000, respagtiand is included on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets undeatiten “accrued liabilities.”

Advertising

We expense the costs of advertising as incurregdéordance with SOP 93-7, “Reporting on Advertisiasts.” Advertising expense for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004ppasx@mately $329,000, $123,000, and $226,000 actbely.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs that are associatddaut products and services are included in costwdnues.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Product Development Costs

Product development costs include internal andreateosts to develop and convert content for aterhet-based learning and installed
learning management products. We account for thgsets in accordance with EITF Issue No. 00-2 “Aating for Web Site Development
Costs.” We capitalize the cost of content develdpethird parties where the life expectancy is tgethan one year and the anticipated cash
flows from such content is expected to exceeddss.cThe Company capitalized approximately $399 A $429,000 of content development
costs during 2006 and 2005, respectively. Capédlizontent development costs are included in tberapanying consolidated balance sheets
under the captions “prepaid development fees” atletr assets.” We amortize content developmentitvexpected life, which is generally
one to three years. Content development costdhthest been capitalized are subject to a periodiaimpent review in accordance with our
policy. We did not capitalize any internal Web sitsvelopment costs during 2006 or 2005, since distsavere related to planning or operation
of such products and sites.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

We compute net income (loss) per share in accoedaiitt SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Underglovisions of Statement 128, basic
net income (loss) per share is computed by dividiirggnet income (loss) available to common shadshslifor the period by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtiégeriod. Diluted net income (loss) per shaeomputed by dividing the net income
(loss) for the period by the weighted average numabeommon and common equivalent shares outstgrdiining the period. Common
equivalent shares, composed of incremental commares issuable upon the exercise of stock optiodserrants, escrowed or restricted
shares, and shares subject to vesting are incindditited net income per share to the extent tisbsees are dilutive. Common equivalent
shares are dilutive when the average market pricagl the period exceeds the exercise price ofittterlying shares. Common equivalent
shares that have an anti-dilutive effect on dilutetincome (loss) per share have been excludettfte calculation of diluted weighted
average shares outstanding for the years endedibece31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custaners

We place our temporary excess cash investmentglinquality, short-term money market instrumentstifies, such investments may be in
excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

We sell our learning management systems and otheragion services to various companies in the heale industry that are located in the
United States. We perform ongoing credit evaluaiohour customers’ financial condition and gerignaquire no collateral from customers.
We have one significant customer, HCA, who comprigpproximately 11%, or $3.5 million, of net reveswduring 2006 for our HCO
segment, approximately 14% or $3.9 million, of retenues during 2005, and approximately 15%, @ 8fllion, of net revenues during 20!
The total amounts receivable from HCA at Decemtier2B06 and 2005 were approximately $470,000 aB@ 80, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has two dtaskd compensation plans, which are described i@ No Prior to January 1, 2006, we
accounted for stock option grants in accordanck witcounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. ‘Z&counting for Stock Issued to
Employees” and related interpretations. Duringythars ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we dictoognize stock based compensation
expense within our consolidated statements of dip@sabecause the exercise price of our employsk stptions was not less than the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Ba&sgment.” SFAS No. 123(R)
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for &ttssued to Employees,” (APB 25) and requires cargsato recognize compensation
expense, using a fair-value based method, for cektted to share-based payments, including stptikres. The Company adopted SFAS

No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 and implementedriguthe modifie-prospective method for transition purposes. Theesfprior period
financial results have not been restated. The risabiffrospective method requires compensation exptenise recorded for all unvested share-
based payments outstanding prior to adoption andlfshare-based payments issued subsequent ppi@dasing a fair value approach. We
use the Black Scholes option pricing model for gkalting the fair value of awards issued under ¢oclsbased compensation plans.

The impact on our results from operations durin@&fBom adopting SFAS No. 123(R) resulted in addiil compensation expense of
approximately $682,000, or $0.03 per diluted share.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Prior to adopting SFAS No. 123(R), we accountediarstock based compensation plans under thasitrivalue-based method of accounting
prescribed by APB 25 and related interpretatiom® fbllowing pro forma table reflects our net in@(oss) and net income (loss) per share
had the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123 “Agoting for Stock Based Compensatidréen followed during the years ended Decembe
2005 and 2004:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
Net income (loss) as report $1,912,92 $(1,048,38I)
Add: Stock based employee compensation expenagedlin reported net income (loss), net of related
taxes — —
Deduct: Total stock based employee compensatioersedetermined under fair value based methodlf
awards, net of related tax effe: (586,80/) (542,56()
Pro forma net income (los $1,326,12: $(1,590,94)
Basic net income (loss) per sh— as reportes $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05)
Basic net income (loss) per sh— pro forma $ 0.0€ $ (0.0¢)
Diluted net income (loss) per shi— as reportet $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0%)
Diluted net income (loss) per she— pro forma $ 0.0¢€ $ (0.0¢)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following methods and assumptions were usedtimating fair value for financial instruments:

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted calde carrying amounts approximate the fair valueahse of the short-term maturity or short-term
nature of such instruments.

Accounts receivable, accounts receivi-unbilled, interest receivable, accounts payablgraed liabilities and deferred revenuhe carrying
amounts, net of any allowance for doubtful accousproximate the fair value because of the skewmnature of such instruments.

Investments in marketable securitiThe carrying amounts approximate the fair valueetias quoted market prices.

Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@@ssued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “AccountiogUncertainty in Income Taxes &
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 38This Interpretation clarifies the accounting forcartainty in income taxes recognizec
the financial statements, and requires companiasdéa more-likely-than-not recognition threshagdd on the technical merits of the tax
position taken. Tax positions that meet the mdeeli-thannot recognition threshold should be measured ierta determine the tax benefi
be recognized in the financial statements. FINsA&ffiective in fiscal years beginning after Deceniti® 2006. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 4B lmave on its financial position and results @eoations. The Company is required to adopt
the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007.

On September 15, 2006, the FASB issued, SFAS N&.“Fair Value Measurements.” The standard provglgdance for using fair value to
measure assets and liabilities and applies wherwkier standards require (or permit) assets oilitiab to be measured at fair value. The
standard does not expand the use of fair valueymaw circumstances. SFAS No. 157 is effectiveif@ncial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. Manageiséantthe process of evaluating the impact of tigs/ standard on the Compi's
financial position and results of operations.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢“Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finalncabilities.” This new standard
provides companies with an option to report seteiteancial assets and liabilities at fair valuen@rally accepted accounting principles have
required different measurement attributes for déffie assets and liabilities that can create aidifwolatility in earnings. The FASB believes
that Statement 159 helps to mitigate this typecebantinginduced volatility by enabling companies to repetated assets and liabilities at
value, which would likely reduce the need for comipa to comply with detailed rules for hedge acdimgn Statement 159 also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements designtilitate comparisons between companies thavshdifferent measurement attributes for
similar types of assets and liabilities. The neat&nent does not eliminate disclosure requireniantsded in other accounting standards,
including requirements for disclosures about failue measurements included in SFAS No. 157 and.®b. This Statement is effective
beginning January 1, 2008 for the Company, withyesatoption permitted under certain circumstandésnagement is currently evaluating the
impact that adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have ba Company’s financial position and results of agiens.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On March 28, 2005, the Company acquired all ofstioek of DMR for approximately $10.7 million, costing of $9.1 million in cash and
479,234 shares of our common stock, of which 31®sttares were released from escrow on Septemb20@8, The Company also incurred
direct, incremental expenses associated with theisition of approximately $0.4 million. Goodwikkcorded in connection with the acquisition
will generate deductible amortization for federaddme tax purposes. DMR provides healthcare orgtairs a wide range of quality and
satisfaction surveys, data analyses of surveytesand other research-based measurement toolse3hks of operations for DMR have been
included in the Company’s statement of operatieffective March 29, 2005. The allocation of purehasice was as follows:

Estimated fair value of tangible assets acqu $ 718,35
Estimated fair value of liabilities assum (494,029)
Purchase price in excess of net tangible assetsradi 10,660,70
Less fair value of stock issu (1,343,14)
Cash paic 9,541,88
Less cash acquire (17,81
Net cash paid for acquisitic $ 9,524,07

The purchase price in excess of the net tangilsletasicquired was allocated as follows:

Goodwill $ 7,010,70
Customer related intangibl: $ 3,400,001
Non-compete agreeme $ 250,00(

The following unaudited pro forma results of opemas for the year ended December 31, 2005 givesetb the operations of DMR as if the
acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2005s& li@audited pro forma results of operations irelegttain adjustments arising from the
acquisition such as owner compensation and ambdizaxpense. The pro forma results of operatianaat purport to represent what the
Companys results of operations would have been had sadsactions in fact occurred at the beginning ofpéréod presented or to project
Company'’s results of operations in any future pério

Revenue (pr-forma) $28,769,60
Net income (pr-forma) $ 2,400,03
Net income per share (j-forma):
Basic $ 0.11
Diluted $ 0.11
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3. SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Common Stock
We are authorized to issue up to 75 million shafesommon stock. The number of common shares isanddutstanding as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 was 21,928,687 and 21,574,904, riésggc
Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 10 million shafgweferred stock in one or more series, havimggrétative voting powers, designations,
preferences, rights and qualifications, limitatiemsestrictions, and other terms as the Boardiodddors may fix in providing for the issuance
of such series, without any vote or action of thareholders. During 2000, all outstanding shargeefierred stock were converted into
common stock in connection with our IPO. There ha@en no shares of preferred stock outstanding sioc IPO.

Warrants

In connection with a distribution agreement we edento during 1999, we provided a business paktith a warrant to purchase 245,032
shares of our common stock at $4.06 per sharewBheants expire in June 2009 and no part of theaméihas been exercised as of
December 31, 2006.

4. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation aéle and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Numerator:

Net income (loss $ 2,499,68 $ 1,912,92 $(1,048,38)
Denominator

Weightec-average shares outstandi

Basic 21,576,55 21,051,37 20,585,82

Employee stock options and escrowed sh 782,09! 890,80¢ —

Diluted 22,358,64 21,942,18 20,585,82
Net income (loss) per shal

Basic $ 0.12 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0%)

Diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05)

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, a0 &tk calculation of weighted average and egeitedhares excluded options and
warrants that were anti-dilutive. The equivalentnooon shares related to such options and warrames 864,460 in 2006, 1,447,561 in 2005
and 3,048,842 in 2004.

In March 2007, the Company granted stock optiorisstmanagement group to purchase up to 436,00@shehe grants were made on
March 7, 2007 and March 12, 2007 with exercisegwriof $3.75 and $3.91 per share, respectively.erbpsons vest over four years and ex
eight years after issuance.
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5. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2006, investments in marketablargezs, which were all classified as available-fate and considered to be short-term
based on management’s intent of holding such seesufor less than 12 months, included the follayvin

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Losses Gains Value
Auction Rate Securitie $1,700,00t $— $— $1,700,00

At December 31, 2005, investments in marketablargezs, which were all classified as available-fate and considered to be short-term
based on management’s intent of holding such seesifor less than 12 months, included the follayvin

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Losses Gains Value
Auction Rate Securitie $6,175,001 $— $— $6,175,00(

The scheduled maturities of the above auctionsaterities at December 31, 2006 is shown below:

Maturing after ten yeal $1,700,001

6. GOODWILL

We account for goodwill under the provisions oft8taent 142, which specifies the approach and tifongvaluating impairment of intangik
assets, and also requires that goodwill be testeinfpairment at least annually using a fair vatuethod. We test goodwill for impairment
using a discounted cash flow model. The technicagel io determine the fair value of our reportingsuis sensitive to estimates and
assumptions associated with cash flow from openatand its growth, discount rates, and reportirigtarminal values. If these estimates or
their related assumptions change in the futuremang be required to record additional impairmentrghsa, which could adversely impact our
operating results for the period in which such edeination is made. We perform our annual impaim@valuation of goodwill during the
fourth quarter of each year and as changes in éaxtircumstances indicate impairment exists. mudur annual impairment evaluation in
fourth quarter of 2006 and 2005, the results ofgnodwill impairment analysis indicated the faitueof our reporting units exceeded their
carrying values. Therefore no impairment existeDetember 31, 2006 and 2005.

On March 28, 2005 we acquired DMR. We recorded gdlbdf $7,010,705 in connection with this acquisit, which will generate deductible
amortization for federal income tax purposes. Thanges in the carrying amount of goodwill for tleags ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
are as follows:

HCO PMD Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $8,993,66! $1,323,72 $10,317,39
Changes in carrying value of goodwv — — —
Balance at December 31, 2C $8,993,66! $1,323,72 $10,317,39

HCO PMD Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $1,982,96: $1,323,72 $ 3,306,68!
Changes in carrying value of goodv 7,010,70! — 7,010,70!
Balance at December 31, 2C $8,993,66! $1,323,72 $10,317,39
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets have been evaluated in aecare with Statement 142 and are considered tofirdieeuseful lives. The intangibles are
being amortized over their estimated useful livasging from one to eight years. Amortization dfingible assets was approximately
$508,000, $552,000, and $344,000, for the yearsceBecember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offthlewing:

As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net
Customer relate $ 6,340,00! $(3,687,24)  $2,652,75 $ 6,340,001 $(3,262,24)  $3,077,75
Content 3,500,00! (3,500,00) — 3,500,001 (3,500,001 —
Other 672,14 (568,919 103,22 672,14 (485,58") 186,55
Total $10,512,14 $(7,756,16)  $2,755,98  $10,512,14 $(7,247,82)  $3,264,31

Estimated amortization expense for the years endegember 31, is as follows:

2007 $ 508,33
2008 444 ,89:
2009 425,00(
2010 425,00(
2011 425,00(
Thereaftel 527,75

Total $2,755,98.

8. CONTENT RIGHTS AND DEFERRED SERVICE CREDITS

During the second quarter of 2006, we completecatgzdand maintenance required to publish certairseavare owned by one of our
customers and were provided the right to distrilaute resell such courseware to our Internet-basgstmers. In exchange for receipt of an
exclusive license to distribute and resell thisrseware, we provided the customer with serviceitge¢kat can be used to make future
purchases of our products and services. We acabfimtehis transaction in accordance with Accougitirinciples Board Opinion No. 29
“Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” as amehbg SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assétse initial value assigned to
the content rights and the deferred service credits $904,167, which represents the estimated/ddie of the assets relinquished. The content
rights are classified within prepaid developmesetsfand other assets, and the service creditsamsifeéd within accrued liabilities and other
long term liabilities on our condensed consoliddiathnce sheet as of December 31, 2006.

The service credits will be issued annually throbDgitember 31, 2008, and expire twenty-four monttes &ssuance. Any unused credits will
be forfeited. As of December 31, 2006, we weregattéd to issue remaining credits of $759,167 thindDgcember 31, 2008. Additional sen
credits may be provided in the future if the custoiprovides additional courseware rights to us. ddrgent rights are being amortized on a
straight-line basis through December 31, 2008. Rees for services provided in exchange for sersiiedits will be recognized in accordance
with our revenue recognition policies.

9. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We have two reportable segments, services provméedalthcare organizations and professionals (H&@)services provided to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies (PIM@D)March 28, 2005, we acquired DMR, a company fedws offering healthcare
organizations a wide range of quality and satigfacturveys, data analyses of survey results, émel oesearch-based measurement tools.
Accordingly, DMR is included in our HCO businesgs®nt. The accounting policies of the segmentstereame as those described in No
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policied’e manage and operate our business segments bratesl markets they serve and the prod
and services provided to those markets. Substgndithlsales from both business units during 20@8enmade to customers in the United St
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9. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

The following is our business segment informatieroband for the years ended December 31, 2006 200 2004. We measure segment
performance based on operating loss before incarestand prior to the allocation of corporate ogathexpenses, interest income, interest
expense, and depreciation. The unallocated compdedow includes corporate functions, such as aatbog, human resources, legal,

marketing, administrative, and executive persoreeelyell as depreciation, a portion of amortizatenmd certain other expenses, which are not

currently allocated in measuring segment perforraanc

Revenues, ne
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic

*Segment asse
Purchases of property and equipm
Payments associated with capitalized software feaohancemen

Revenues, ne
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic

*Segment asse
Purchases of property and equipm
Payments associated with capitalized software feaohancemen

Revenues, n¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic

*Segment asse
Purchases of property and equipm
Payments associated with capitalized software feaohancemen

Year ended December 31, 20C

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$25,431,87 $6,351,59: $ — $31,783,46
5,467,80: 4,708,63: 692,86: 10,869,30
3,029,75. 328,79 144,24¢ 3,502,799
5,629,311 1,202,97. 187,76 7,020,05.
1,417,33! 64,85¢ 1,406,97 2,889,16:!
158,29: 63,73( 5,371,00. 5,593,02
$9,72937. $ (17,39)  $(7,802,85) $ 1,909,13.
$21,608,44 $5,507,82 $13,892,21 $41,008,48
$ 683,18t $ 206,56¢ $ 510,88l $ 1,400,63
$ 2,255,40. $ 19,28 $ — $ 2,274,68.
Year ended December 31, 2005

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$21,148,41 $6,210,99: $ — $27,359,40
5,453,67. 3,665,96. 625,83 9,745,47!
2,285,11! 388,11° 254,87t 2,928,11.
3,924,60. 1,312,901 214,65¢ 5,452,16:
930,05! 200,55: 1,547,83: 2,678,441
209,89¢ 138,47¢ 4,610,13: 4,958,50:!

$ 8,345,06! $ 504,97 $(7,253,33) $ 1,596,70:
$17,440,07 $4,666,89 $13,109,16 $35,216,14
$ 316,01¢ $ 14593 $ 290,260 $ 752,22
$ 567,93¢ $ 58,18¢ $ — $ 626,12

Year ended December 31, 2004

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$13,988,81 $6,068,49! $ = $20,057,30
2,826,44. 3,865,54! 585,18 7,277,17.
2,008,00 378,56 144,60: 2,531,17
3,564,67. 1,024,401 209,60t 4,798,68
338,01 402,53( 1,366,21! 2,106,75!
173,24¢ 115,82 4,345,30° 4,634,37

$ 5,078,431 $ 281,61t  $(6,650,91)  $(1,290,86)
$ 6,496,19 $4,254,68; $17,684,81 $28,435,68
$ 608,20( $ 340,13: $ 672,57 $ 1,620,90!
$ 312,80t % — 3 — $  312,80¢

* Segment assets include restricted cash, accouthtsrdnilled receivables, prepaid and other curreséts, other assets, capitali.
software feature enhancements, property and equipraed intangible assets. Investments in marketsdturities and cash and cash

equivalents are not allocated to individual segmesd are included within Unallocat:
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10. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is comprised of:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Current federa $ 28,04 $21,50( $ —
Current statt — — —
Deferred federe — — —
Deferred stat — — —
Provision for income taxe $ 28,04« $21,50( $ —

Income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amts computed by applying the federal statutorg odit34% to the income (loss) before
income taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
Federal tax provision (benefit) at the statutong $ 859,42 $ 657,70 $(356,449)
State income tax provision (benefit), net of fetibemefit 102,68: 80,27 (39,63)
Other 254,62: (32,26%) (94,670)
(Decrease) increase in valuation allowa (1,188,68) (684,21") 490,75(
Provision for income taxe $ 28,04« $ 21,50( $ =

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflechéteéax effects of temporary differences betwéencarrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounésider income tax purposes. Significant componehtieferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005

Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 42,64¢ $ 43,73¢
Differences related to business combinati 772,81° 1,105,15:
Depreciatior 467,50: 396,09¢
Accrued liabilities 318,20: 296,60¢
Difference related to warran 1,227,38! 1,227,38!
Research and development cre 285,78’ 322,46¢
Stock based compensati 57,00¢ —
Alternative minimum tax credit 49,54+ 21,50(
Other 13,541 13,41¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 15,041,69 15,842,17
Total deferred tax asse 18,276,13 19,268,54
Less: Valuation allowanc (18,276,13) (19,268,54)
Net deferred tax ass $ — 3 —

As of December 31, 2006, we had federal and st&tteperating loss carryforwards of $40,541,767 $8t1437,329, respectively. These losses
will expire in years 2012 through 2024. As of Detem31, 2006, $2,522,368 of our net operating dasg/forwards is attributable to the
exercise of stock options, and if realized, theltarefit will be recorded as an increase to adufitipaid-in capital. Our net operating loss
carryforwards are subject to annual limitationsemidternal Revenue Code Section 382. The annuéhlions could result in the expiration
the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwdefere they are fully utilized. During the yedretvaluation allowance decreased by $992
which was comprised of a $1,188,688 decrease detateurrent taxes and an increase of $196,277erkta the exercise of stock options.

We have research and development tax credit cawgfols of $285,787 that expire in varying amouhtsugh 2024. We have alternative
minimum tax credit carryforwards of $49,544 that awvailable to offset future regular tax liabilitiand they do not expire.

We have established a valuation allowance for defietax assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005pdhe tincertainty of realizing these as
in the future. Federal income tax payments of $21,$15,000, and $-0- were made during the yeatsdeBecember 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively. There were no state incom@agxments made during the years ended Decembef@6, 2005, and 2004.
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11. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Total stock based compensation expense recordediessilt of adopting Statement 123(R), for the yealed December 31, 2006, which is
recorded in our statements of operations, is davist

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) $ 53,79(
Product developmel 142,05¢
Sales and marketir 127,95
Other general and administrati 358,26

Total stock based compensation expe $682,06¢

Stock Option Plans

Our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Plan) and 1&®loyee Stock Option Plan (1994 Plan) (the 20@m Rhd the 1994 Plan are collectiv
referred to as “the Plan”) authorize the grantmtians or other forms of stock based compensati@niployees, officers, directors and others,
and such grants must be approved by the Compengatimmittee of the Board of Directors. The termbath plans are substantially similar.
Options granted under the Plan have terms of n@ than ten years, with certain restrictions. TrenRlllows the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors to determine the vestindqueof each grant. The vesting period of the optigranted ranges from immediate vesting
(generally associated with professional consultiogrds and directors’ options) to annual vestingrdgur years, beginning one year after the
grant date (generally for employee and officeram). As of December 31, 2006, 2,126,123 sharesisued common stock remained
reserved for future grants under the Plan. The Gmyssues new shares of common stock when optiensxercised.

The weighted average fair value of options gramtad estimated using the Black-Scholes method. dihges of assumptions used for these
estimates include:

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rat 4.55-5.07% 3.77-4.4"% 2.5(-3.5(%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected life (in years 5to ¢ 5to ¢ 5to ¢
Expected forfeiture rat 0-15% 0% 0%
Volatility 75% 75% 75%

Risk-free interest rates based on the U.S. Treasury rate in effect atithe of the option grant having a term equivaterthe expected life of
the option.

Expected dividend yiel zero because the Company has not made any divjgleyments in its history and does not plan togiaiglends in
the foreseeable future.

Expected lifeis the period of time the option is expected toasmnoutstanding, and is based on historical expeeeThe contractual option life
ranges from eight to ten years. We estimate thectrg life of options granted to members of manageno be five years and eight years for
directors.

Expected forfeiture ratis the estimated percentage of options grantedatieahot expected to become fully vested. Thisregs is based on
historical experience, and will be adjusted as s&ag/ to match the actual forfeiture experience.

Volatility is the measure of the amount by which the priexjgected to fluctuate. We estimate volatility bagedhe actual historical volatility
of our common stock, and we believe future volgtilvill be similar to our past experience.

We amortize the fair value of all stock based awand a straight-line basis over the requisite serperiod, which generally is the vesting
period.
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11. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

A progression of activity and various other infotioa relative to stock options is presented inttiide below.

2006 2005 2004

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Common Exercise Common Exercise Common Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstandinc— beginning of periot 2,794,41! $ 3.41 2,813,811 $ 3.27 2,840,88! $ 3.2¢
Granted 516,42( 2.9¢ 438,00( 3.1C 460,00( 2.5¢
Exercisec (285,687 1.7z (344,41) 1.9¢ (121,509 1.2z
Expired (69,725 4.81 (17,616 1.77 (19,009 5.8€
Forfeited (148,75() 2.31 !95,36() 3.7€ 5346,555) 3.0¢
Outstandinc— end of perioc 2,806,67 $ 3.52 2,794,41! $ 341 2,813,81! $ 3.27
Exercisable at end of peric 1,887,42! $ 3.8¢ 1,886,16. $ 3.8¢ 1,993,43! $ 381

Other information relative to option activity dugithe years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, andi2@g&4follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptgrantet $ 2.01 $ 1.97 $ 1.6C
Total fair value of stock options vest $582,18¢ $348,03. $577,99¢
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $663,20: $414,94¢ $118,66:
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock opt $490,46° $654,95! $148,80¢

Weighted average exercise prices per share anougasither information for options outstanding at®waber 31, 2006 are segregated into
ranges as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Price Remaining Number of Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Price Shares Per Share Contractual Life Shares Per Share
$0.54- $1.19 90,00( $ 1.1C 2.7 90,00( $ 1.1C
$1.20- $2.38 781,49: 1.64 3.C 702,24 1.6€
$2.39- $3.57 1,154,04! 2.9¢ 6.6 314,04 2.94
$3.58- $4.76 316,35( 4.0¢€ 0.7 316,35( 4.0¢€
$4.77- $5.95 25,00( 5.42 1.5 25,00( 5.42
$5.96- $7.13 220,15( 6.4¢ 1.C 220,15( 6.4¢
$8.33- $9.50 77,59¢ 8.9t 2.8 77,59¢ 8.9t
$9.51- $10.70 75,85( 10.0C 1.2 75,85( 10.0C
$10.71- $11.89 66,19¢ 11.8¢ 1.2 66,19¢ 11.8¢
2,806,67! $ 3.52 2.3 1,887,42! $ 3.8¢€
Aggregate Intrinsic Valu $3,200,05: $2,162,75

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeesents the total difference between the Comparigsing stock price on December 29, 2
(the last trading day of the year) of $3.95 anddpion exercise price, multiplied by the numbemathe-money options as of December 31,
2006. As of December 31, 2006, total unrecognizedpensation expense related to non-vested stoangpias $1,139,874, net of estimated
forfeitures, with a weighted average expense reitiogrperiod of 2.7 years.
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11. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Purchase Plemipiorates the provisions of Section 423 of therhl Revenue Code. Under the
Purchase Plan, 1,000,000 shares of common stoekbiean reserved for purchase by employees. Thaéa&sedlan provides for annual offer
periods of twelve months to eligible employees. éhtthe Purchase Plan, eligible employees can psectieiough payroll deductions, the les
of up to 15% of their eligible base compensatio®,600 shares of common stock, at a price equiv&eBs% of the lesser of the beginning or
end of Purchase Plan year price. During 2006, @8sh@res were purchased under the plan at $2.3hpez, and during 2005, 83,742 shares
were purchased under the plan at $1.90 per sharef Becember 31, 2006, there were 623,774 shaedlalle for issuance under the Purct
Plan. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS N2B(R), the Company recognized $58,639 of stosketh@ompensation expense for the
Purchase Plan during the year ended December 86, R compensation expense was recognized unidgplém prior to the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R).

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
401(k) Plan

We have a defined-contribution employee benefih [(#01(k) Plan) incorporating provisions of Sectitiii(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Our employees must have attained the age of 2havel completed thirty days of service to be elgiiol participate in the 401(k) Plan. Under
the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan membey make contributions, on a tax-deferred basistmeixceed 20% of compensation, subject
to IRS limitations. The Company provided eligiblagoyees with a discretionary contribution totalaggproximately $73,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2004. The Company did not peavidiscretionary contribution for the year ended@&nber 31, 2006 or 2005. The
Company has not provided matching contributionsugh December 31, 2006.

13. REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

On July 21, 2006, the Company entered into a Logreément (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) with STirust Bank (“SunTrust”) in the
aggregate principal amount of $7.0 million, whichtares on July 21, 2009. The obligations underékelving credit facility are guaranteed
by each of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Comgsabgirowings under the revolving credit facilityabénterest at a LIBOR rate generally
defined as the sum of (i) a variable rate of irgeegjual to the 30-Day LIBOR Rate and (ii) 150 ®asiints per annum. Principal is payable in
full on the maturity date. The Company is requitegay a commitment fee of 10 basis points per anofithe average daily unused portion of
the revolving credit facility.

The purpose of the revolving credit facility is fpeneral working capital needs, permitted acqois#ti(as defined in the Loan Agreement), and
for stock repurchase and/or redemption transactiwetsthe Company may authorize.

The revolving credit facility contains certain conaats that, among other things, restrict additiamd¢btedness, liens and encumbrances,
changes to the character of the Company’s busiaegsisitions, asset dispositions, mergers anddioiasions, sale or discount of receivables,
creation or acquisitions of additional subsidiareasd other matters customarily restricted in sageements.

In addition, the revolving credit facility requirése Company to meet certain financial tests, iiclg, without limitation:

. a maximum total leverage ratio (consolidated delgolidated EBITDA) of 2.0 to 1.0; a1

. a minimum consolidated tangible net worth of $5i0iom.
As of December 31, 2006, the Company believes stiwaompliance with all covenants. There were alatces outstanding on the revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2006. See Né&eegarding an amendment to this agreement madiegdeebruary 2007.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Commitments

As of December 31, 2006, we lease office facilittedlashville, TN, Franklin, TN, Denver, CO, andl@a, TX, under agreements that expire
before or during April 2010. The Dallas, TX fagjlivas subleased to a third party through the etipitaf the original lease, which ended in
January 2007. Some lease agreements contain mawifir escalating rent payments over the inidathis of the lease. We account for these
leases by recognizing rent expense on the stréighbasis and adjusting the deferred rent expbaisidity for the difference between the
straightfine rent expense and the amount of rent paid.ddrapany also leases certain office equipment ubotr operating and capital leas
Total rent expense under all operating leases waaimately $897,000, $895,000, and $723,000tHeryears ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively. We also lease cectaimputer equipment from third parties which arecanted for as capital leases.

Future rental payment commitments at December @16 2nder capital and non-cancelable operatingfeagith initial terms of one year or
more, are as follows:

Capital Lease: Operating Lease:
2007 $ 19361. $ 700,64¢
2008 103,67t 403,59
2009 7,65¢ 376,14t
2010 — 116,40°
2011 — —
Total minimum lease paymer 304,94 $ 1,596,79
Less amounts representing intel (21,59)
Present value of minimum lease payments (inclu@itigf,574 classified as curre $ 283,35

Sublease rental income related to the Dallas, TXifiawas approximately $80,000 in 2006 and $78,002005. Future operating lease
commitments listed in the above table have beencextiby anticipated sublease income of approxim&&I000 in 2007.

The carrying value of assets under capital leagkigh are included with owned assets in the accaoyipg consolidated balance sheets was
$279,494 and $375,516 at December 31, 2006 and 2&§%ectively. Amortization of the assets underdapital leases is included in
depreciation expense on the accompanying consetiddaitements of operations.

Litigation

We are subject to various legal proceedings arithsléhat arise in the ordinary course of our bussnén the opinion of management, the
ultimate liability with respect to those proceedirand claims will not materially affect our finaacposition, operations or liquidity.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Revolving Credit Facility

On February 16, 2007, the Company entered inté-itts¢ Amendment to Loan Agreement, by and betwbherClompany and SunTrust Bank.
The aggregate amount of the Revolving Credit Rgaifias increased from $7.0 million to $10.0 millidsnder the amendment, the minimum
consolidated tangible net worth covenant was rem@vel replaced with a Funded Debt to Total Cagithn limit of forty percent (40%).

Business Combination

On March 12, 2007, the Company entered into a Stackhase Agreement with The Jackson Organizaéfesearch Consultants, Inc. (“TIO”
a Maryland corporation, and David Jackson and sioksbn Charitable Remainder Trust (collectively‘tBeller”), the owners of 100% of the
stock of TJO. On the same day and in accordandetidt terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement, timep@oy acquired 100% of the stock of
TJO from the Seller for approximately $11.6 millioncash and 252,616 shares of Company common stgcking in TJO becoming a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “TJ@fsaction”). Approximately $5.0 million of cash sareration and 252,616 shares of
common stock are to be held in escrow until sattgfa of certain items as outlined in the stockghase agreement. TJO provides survey and
research services to the healthcare industry.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

The Company will account for the acquisition of TisGaccordance with SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. W2 expect to record a significant
amount of goodwill and intangible assets in conieactvith the allocation of purchase price. As dof thate of this report, we do not have the
information available to provide a preliminary pluase price allocation.

Also in connection with the TJO Transaction, therany entered into a new lease for an office figditicated in Laurel, Maryland, with an
entity owned by David Jackson, the former majasiyareholder or TJO. The new lease includes a fxae term, with two options to renew the
lease for two years each. Monthly rent is approxétye$29,600, and is subject to annual increasélreé percent.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

HealthStream'’s chief executive officer and printijy@ancial officer have reviewed and evaluated ¢ffectiveness of the Compamsydisclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Secuitiehange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of December 31, 2006. Based on that etadn, the chief executive officer and principaldcial officer have concluded that
HealthStream'’s disclosure controls and procedurse wifective to ensure that the information reegito be disclosed by the Company in the
reports the Company files or submits under the BRgk Act is recorded, processed, summarized amdteelwithin the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rutelsfarms, and the information required to be disetbin the reports the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act was accumulate¢aminunicated to the Company’s management, incluigéngrincipal executive and
principal financial officer, or persons performisignilar functions, as appropriate to allow timebctsions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in HealthStream’s interrmarabover financial reporting that occurred durthg fourth quarter of 2006 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likelynaterially affect, HealthStream’s internal cohwver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

Information as to directors of the Company and owafe governance is incorporated by reference freminformation contained in our proxy
statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharehsltieat we will file with the Securities and ExclggnCommission within 120 days of the

end of the fiscal year to which this report relatesrsuant to General Instruction G(3), certainimfation concerning executive officers of the
Company is included in Part | of this Form 10-Kdenthe caption “Executive Officers of the Registra

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2007 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahBnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2007 AnnuakMwey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

Incorporated by reference from the information egmd in our proxy statement for the 2007 AnnuakMwey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference from the information e@medd in our proxy statement for the 2007 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witf#f days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

Reference is made to the financial statementsdeclun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notagtydé or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements ol
notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description

*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 23, 1999, giibverPlatter Education, Inc., SilverPlatter Imf@tion, Inc. and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 5,,2800ng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitjidnc., Quick Study,
Inc. and each shareholder of Quick Study,

*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 48889 KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis Bucelli and MakdRepik, and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 23) 2éfong HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisiipinc., Multimedia
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of MultimeMarketing, Inc.

*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2680@eén Emergency Medicine Internetwork, Inc. andlth&tream, Inc

26 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,280and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Data
Management & Research, Ir

270 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1Z,,280and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoartirgtion, Research
Consultants, Inc., David Jackson and the Jacksamit@@8hle Remainder Tru

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8tkeam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stackpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended and Restated Chi— included in Exhibit 3.:

4.3 Article Il of the Amended and Restated Byla— included in Exhibit 3.:

*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Healtm$ttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.17 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofil&®b, 1994

*10.2" 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri| 2000

*10.3" Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 21,9,98tween HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fiis

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6ab@9Geptember 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@) bk landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&tteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2001 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infdional echnology &
Services, Inc

*10.8 Form of Employee Stock Purchase F



710.9 Form of Director Stock Option Agreeme
710.10 Form of Employee and Executive Officer Stock Opthkmreemen
10.120 Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Hea#hBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba

10.13@ Amendment to Loan Agreement dated February 16, @dx¥een HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E

211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriin

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursti@o Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

+ Confidential treatment was received, with respe certain portions of this document. Such poiwere omitted and filed separately
with the Securities and Exchange Commiss

* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1 (Reg. No. 33-88939).

A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

(1) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!
(2) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated March 12, 200
(3) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 25, 200t

(4) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated February 20, 200
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on this 30th day of March 2007.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, \R.

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bydtowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated:

Signature

Date

/s/ ROBERT A. FRIST, (R.

Robert A. Frist, Jr

/s/ SusaN A. BROWNIE

Susan A. Brownit

/s/ JaMES DANIELL

James Danie

/s/ THOMPSONDENT

Thompson Den

/s/ FRANK GORDON

Frank Gordor

/s/ GERARD HAYDEN

Gerard Hayde!

/s/ RoN HINDS

Ron Hinds

/s/ JEFFREY L. MCLAREN

Jeffrey L. McLarer

/s/ DALE FoLLEY

Dale Polley

/s/ LINDA REBROVICK

Linda Rebrovick

/s/ MICHAEL SHMERLING

Michael Shmerling

/s/WILLIAM STEAD

William Stead

President, Chief Executive Officer a
Chairman (Principal Executive Office

Chief Financial Officer, Senior Vi-President an
Corporate Secretary (Principal Financial and Actimg Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 23, 1999, gi@itverPlatter Education, Inc., SilverPlatter Infation, Inc. and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 5,,280@0ng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitidnc., Quick Study,
Inc. and each shareholder of Quick Study,

*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 468%g KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis Bucelli and MakdRepik, anc
HealthStream, Inc

*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 25) 26@bng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitipinc., Multimedia
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of MultimeMarketing, Inc.

*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2680e&n Emergency Medicine Internetwork, Inc. andlth&tream, Inc

260 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,230and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Data
Management & Research, Ir

272 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoar@zgtion, Research
Consultants, Inc., David Jackson and the Jacksamit@hle Remainder Tru

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8akam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stackpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended and Restated Cihi— included in Exhibit 3..

4.3 Article Il of the Amended and Restated Byla— included in Exhibit 3.

*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tdated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Healtm$ttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.17 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofil&b, 1994

*10.2° 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri|] 2000

*10.3" Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 21,998 tween HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fiis

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6 abh@9September 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@) bk landlord, an
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&iteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2®01 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infeionalechnology &
Systems, Inc

*10.8 Form of Employee Stock Purchase F

710.9 Form of Director Stock Option Agreeme

710.10 Form of Employee and Executive Officer Stock Optkgreemen

10.120 Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Hea#hBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba

10.13@ Amendment to Loan Agreement dated February 16, @dxeen HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E

211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, Ir



23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursitdo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

(1)
)
3)
(4)

Confidential treatment was received with respeaeidain portions of this document. Such portioesernomitted and filed separately w
the Securities and Exchange Commiss

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1 (Reg. No. 33-88939).
Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 12, 200°
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formn-K, dated July 25, 200t
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated February 20, 200






EXHIBIT 10.9

FORM OF DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

OPTION granted this day of , 200__(“Grant Date”) by HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) to Optionee(the
“Director”).
1. Stock OptionThe Company hereby grants to the Director aroagtihe “Option”) to purchase up to shares of the

common stock of the Company, no par value, to ieeid upon the exercise of the Option, in the maheerafter set forth, fully paid and
nonassessable. This Option is being granted uhdgsrbvisions of the Company’s 2000 Stock Incenfilan (the “Plan”), which are
incorporated herein by reference. The Plan is adteired by the Compensation Committee of the Bo&Mirectors of the Company.

2. Time of ExerciseThis Option shall be exercisable and have a testiollows:
(a) This Option shall expire on the teatimiversary of the Grant Date.
(b) One hundred percent (100%) of theeshgranted under this Option shall vest and bearaecisable on the Grant Date.

(c) This Option shall be exercisable anlyhe lesser of round lots of One Hundred (10@¥ss or the total number of shares
remaining under this Grant.

3. Purchase Pric@he purchase price per share shall be , being not less than the fair market value ofdtiamon stock as of
the Grant Date.

4. Rights as a Sharehold&ihe Director shall have no rights as a sharemald# respect to any shares covered by this Opiiatii the
Director has given written notice of exercise, pasl in full for such shares and taken such oth&oias as may be required by the Committee
in accordance with the provisions of the Plan. Njustment shall be made for dividends for whichréaeord date is prior to the date of
issuance of such stock certificate.

5. Holding PeriodThe Director shall hold any shares issued up@mnatse of this Option for a period of not less toae (1) year
following the date of such exercise.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

The undersigned:

(a) Acknowledges receipt of the forego@ygtion and the attachments referenced thereiruaddrstands all rights and liabilities with
respect to this Option and the Plan, including,rmitlimited to, the undersigned’s obligation tdchany shares issued upon exercise of the
foregoing Option for a period of not less than ¢heyear from the date of such exercise; and

(b) Acknowledges that as of the daterahgof this Option, it sets forth the entire urelending between the undersigned Director and
the Company and its Affiliates regarding the acijois of stock in the Company pursuant to this gi@md supersedes all prior oral and written
agreements on that subject.

Optionee






EXHIBIT 10.1C

FORM OF EMPLOYEE AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

OPTION granted this day of , 200__(“Grant Date”) by HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) to Optionee(the
“Employee”).
1. Stock OptionThe Company hereby grants to the Employee anmthe “Option”) to purchase up to shares of the

common stock of the Company, no par value, to fieeid upon the exercise of the Option, in the maheexafter set forth, fully paid and
nonassessable. This Option is being granted uhdgsrbvisions of the Company’s 2000 Stock Incenfilan (the “Plan”), which are
incorporated herein by reference. The Plan is adteired by the Compensation Committee of the Bo&Mirectors of the Company.

2. Time of ExerciseThis Option shall be exercisable and have a tetiollows:
(a) This Option shall expire on the efghhniversary of the Grant Date.

(b) One fourth (1/4) of the shares grentader this Option shall vest and become exer@sabthe first anniversary of the Grant
Date.

(c) One half (1/2) of the shares granteder this Option shall vest and become exercisabltie second anniversary of the Grant
Date.

(d) Three fourths (3/4) of the shareswgd under this Option shall vest and become esab® on the third anniversary of the Grant
Date.

(e) The remaining one fourth (1/4) of #ares granted under this Option shall vest andrbe exercisable on the fourth anniversary
of the Grant Date.

(f) This Option shall be exercisable oimythe lesser of round lots of One Hundred (10@xss or the total number of shares rema
under this Grant.

3. Purchase Pric@he purchase price per share shall be , being not less than the fair market value ofdtiamon stock as of
the Grant Date.

4. Rights as a Sharehold@he Employee shall have no rights as a sharehuolitle respect to any shares covered by this Opiiuii the
Employee has given written notice of exercise,gwd in full for such shares and taken such oth#omas as may be required by the Commi
in accordance with the provisions of the Plan. Njustment shall be made for dividends for whichréaeord date is prior to the date of
issuance of such stock certificate.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

The undersigned:

(a) Acknowledges receipt of the forego@ygtion and the attachments referenced thereiruaddrstands that all rights and liabilities v
respect to this Option and the Plan; and

(b) Acknowledges that as of the daterafgof this Option, it sets forth the entire urelanding between the undersigned Employee and
the Company and its Affiliates regarding the acigjois of stock in the Company pursuant to this gr@amd supersedes all prior oral and written
agreements on that subject.

Optionee






EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

State or Othe
Jurisdiction of
Incorporation ol

Names Under Which We Do Busine Organizatior
Education Design, Inc Tennesse
Data Management & Research, | Tennesse
The Jackson Organization, Research Consultants Tennesse
HealthStream Acquisition I, Ini Tennesse

HealthStream Acquisition II, In Tennesse






EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&RM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3744@&pgpeng to the (1) HealthStream, Inc.
1994 Employee Stock Option Plan; (2) HealthStrelam, 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; and (3) HealthStrelmc. Employee Stock Purchase

Plan, of our report dated March 27, 2007, with eespo the consolidated financial statements oflti8&eam, Inc. included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decembe2806.

/sl Ernst & Young LLI
Nashville, Tennesse
March 27, 2007






EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:

1.
2.

5.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of HealthStream, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguaures, as of the end of the period coveredibyé¢port based on such evaluation;
and

c¢) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastr’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdmon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of registrant’s board of directors persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2007 /S/ROBERTA. FRIST, <R.

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer






EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

[, Susan A. Brownie, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of HealthStream, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does nitaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the registrant and ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

c¢) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportiftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regastr’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer ahldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 200 /s/ SusaN A. BROWNIE
Susan A. Brownie
Chief Financial Officer







EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStneanc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), Robert A. Frist, Jhi€ Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adoptgduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20&;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/S/ ROBERTA. FRIST, <R.
Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office
March 30, 200°







EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStrednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), Susan A. Brownie, Cligfancial Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20t&:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ SusaN A. BROWNIE
Chief Financial Office!
March 30, 200°




